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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we're on.

          3  He pointed to me, so I can go now. I'd like to say

          4  good afternoon and welcome. I'm Councilman Jim

          5  Gennaro, Chair of the City Council's Committee on

          6  Environmental Protection. Today we're holding a

          7  hearing on five proposed bills related to capturing

          8  and retaining stormwater runoff via so-called

          9  stormwater Best Management Practices, known as

         10  "BMPs." The bills are Intros No. 628, 629 and 630

         11  sponsored by me; Intro. 321, sponsored by Councilman

         12  Yassky; and Intro. 178 sponsored by Councilman Oddo.

         13                 BMPs take advantage of the drainage

         14  potential of vegetated areas, both natural and

         15  build, to capture stormwater before it reaches the

         16  sewer system and empties into the City's

         17  waterbodies.

         18                 Combined Sewer Overflows, or CSOs, as

         19  they are sometimes called, dump, believe it or not,

         20  27 billion gallons of untreated combined sewage and

         21  stormwater into our surrounding water bodies, making

         22  CSOs the largest contributor of fecal coliform and

         23  other pathogens.

         24                 CSOs also convey other pathogens, as

         25  well as nitrogen, which leads to algae-blooms and
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          2  depleted oxygen levels in local water bodies. Other

          3  stormwater that enters separate storm sewers also

          4  empties into those waters, carrying with it toxins,

          5  nitrogen, pathogens and the like.

          6                 Last, some stormwater flows overlend

          7  directly into our water bodies, further polluting

          8  them with oil residue, nitrogen and other toxins.

          9  So, of course, stormwater is the culprit.

         10                 Now, what do we do? Alleviating CSOs

         11  is, and has been, a major City priority that has

         12  consumed and continues to consume tremendous amounts

         13  of effort and resources.

         14                 For about 20 years now, the City,

         15  working with State, federal and local partners, has

         16  been struggling with this matter.

         17                 The City is currently under a third

         18  Administrative consent order which had started in

         19  2004 and that consent order superseded the 1992 and

         20  1996 consent orders.

         21                 The price tag for these efforts runs

         22  into the billions of dollars and the time frame

         23  envisioned takes us out to 2017 and beyond, at which

         24  point the City will finally have, if everything goes

         25  as planned, a Citywide long-term control plan for
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          2  managing our CSOs.

          3                 The legislation contemplated today

          4  looks to create a system that would capture more

          5  stormwater at the source by using so-called green

          6  infrastructure, such as parks and gardens, yards,

          7  green roofs, grass swells along streets, better tree

          8  pit design, and the like.

          9                 It also calls for taking stormwater

         10  issues into account for all significant capital

         11  projects so that we think more about solving CSO and

         12  other stormwater problems each time we add to the

         13  City's built environment.

         14                 Taken together, the measures proposed

         15  today would, along other things, reduce pollutants

         16  and pathogens entering our water, could allow for

         17  greater recreational uses and would increase the

         18  ecological health of those waters. It would also

         19  expand green space in the City and supplement

         20  through green practices the engineering approaches

         21  to stormwater management that we have relied on and

         22  often had let us down in the past.

         23                 I look forward to hearing from the

         24  Administration on this matter, and they're here

         25  today, I'm happy to have them.
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          2                 I understand that they are currently

          3  engaged in planning other activities that will

          4  contribute significantly to reaching the goals of

          5  the legislation we are hearing today. I certainly

          6  appreciate those efforts. Indeed, the Mayor's PlaNYC

          7  2030 acknowledges that current practices have,

          8  quote, created barriers to our ability to assess and

          9  develop comprehensive policies for the deployment of

         10  BMPs on a Citywide basis.

         11                 The plan calls for an interagency

         12  task force pilot programs, that is the Plan, when I

         13  say PlaNYC, calls for an interagency task force,

         14  pilot program, data collection and publication, and

         15  other measures that would lead to the better use of

         16  BMPs to reduce CSOs, among other benefits.

         17                 I believe this legislation under

         18  consideration today, will help lock in that effort

         19  and commit the City to this approach over the long

         20  term.

         21                 It is certainly necessary that we

         22  take all of the good ideas from PlaNYC to the extent

         23  possible and put those into legislation where they

         24  will live on, you know, beyond the Bloomberg

         25  Administration, beyond my tenure here, and you know,
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          2  beyond this Council. So, it's critically important

          3  that we reduce the writing, get this done. We're

          4  both, you know, working along the same lines, and

          5  that is excellent, and I think unprecedented in my

          6  24 years in City government. So, we've got a good

          7  thing going here.

          8                 I also look forward to the testimony

          9  of a number of advocacy groups that have spent a

         10  great deal of time and effort pushing for cleaner

         11  water. Of course, the Swim Coalition was with me

         12  this morning at the press conference. I certainly

         13  appreciate all of the members of the Swim Coalition

         14  who were out there with us in the chilly morning

         15  this morning. Pushing for cleaner water would lead

         16  to a more complete range of recreational uses of our

         17  waterways and better ecological health, as well.

         18                 Before I call the Administration to

         19  testify, we're joined by Council Member Ignizio from

         20  Staten Island, Council Member Eugene from Brooklyn,

         21  we are joined by our Policy Analyst to the

         22  Committee, Dan Avery, Laura Popa from the Speaker's

         23  staff, and in our first hearing with us we have a

         24  new Counsel to the Committee, Samara Swanston, to my

         25  left, and Samara has come to us highly recommended
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          2  with a resume that reads like a major motion

          3  picture. And so, we're very grateful to have her

          4  with us. She follows in the footsteps of the beloved

          5  Donna DeCostanzo, who served this Committee so long

          6  and so well. But we're absolutely delighted to have

          7  Samara with us. This is her first hearing, so

          8  everyone be nice to her.

          9                 And, so, with that said, I would like

         10  to call the Administration to testify. We have

         11  Carter Strickland, from I guess the Mayor's Office

         12  of Operations, and my friend Angela Licata from the

         13  New York City DEP. I was just explaining to Samara,

         14  I should have mentioned this to her before, but it

         15  is our practice in this Committee to swear our

         16  witnesses in, and so I was just going through that

         17  little protocol with her so that she knows how to

         18  swear at the people, swear at/swear in.

         19                 So, if you would swear the witnesses,

         20  then we could commence.

         21                 MS. SWANSTON: Carter Strickland, do

         22  you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole

         23  truth and nothing but the truth today?

         24                 MR. STRICKLAND: I do.

         25                 MS. SWANSTON: And Angela Licata, do
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          2  you also swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          3  whole truth and nothing but the truth today?

          4                 MS. LICATA: Mm-hmm.

          5                 MS. SWANSTON: Thank you.

          6                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

          8  Thank you, Samara.

          9                 It's a pleasure having you both here

         10  today, and we look forward to your testimony. I know

         11  you have had a lot of colloquy with the central

         12  staff on this issue, and we're grateful for your

         13  presence here today and we look forward to your

         14  testimony.

         15                 MR. STRICKLAND: Good afternoon,

         16  Chairman Gennaro and Committee members. On behalf of

         17  the Administration, I will address the importance of

         18  the stormwater management issues that are the

         19  subject of this hearing.

         20                 We welcome the opportunity to work

         21  with the Council on stormwater issues, and look

         22  forward to an ongoing dialogue about stormwater

         23  management.

         24                 In my testimony today, I will first

         25  address and discuss --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Carter, I am

          3  told by t he Sergeant that you haven't stated your

          4  name for the record, and I should have asked you to

          5  do that. So, sorry about that.

          6                 Thank you, Sergeant.

          7                 If you could just state your name for

          8  the record, we would appreciate that.

          9                 MR. STRICKLAND: For the record, my

         10  name is Carter Strickland, the Mayor's Office of

         11  Operations, Long Term Planning and Sustainability.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         13                 MR. STRICKLAND: In my testimony

         14  today, I will first discuss general water quality

         15  and stormwater management principles, and then the

         16  Stormwater Policy commitments of NYC, Mayor

         17  Bloomberg's Long-Term Planning Sustainability Plan

         18  and related efforts in Jamaica Bay.

         19                 I will address the bills before the

         20  Committee and will be available to answer questions,

         21  along with my colleague Brianna Wolf, Angela Licata,

         22  to my left, and representatives from the Parks

         23  Department.

         24                 To give you a little background. New

         25  York is surrounded by a maze of waterways that
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          2  combine to form a rich, natural estuary. When Henry

          3  Hudson first sailed these waters, there were 350

          4  square miles of oyster beds in the estuary, and for

          5  a time after settlement, these were a great

          6  delicacy. But several hundred years of dumping

          7  sewage, dumping garbage and piping sewage,

          8  industrial waste, into the surrounding waters have

          9  ruined many of these natural resources.

         10                 The good news is that we have done

         11  better, and after spending billions of dollars over

         12  many decades on sewer systems and wastewater

         13  treatment plants, the City now treats virtually all

         14  the sewage, all of its sewage before discharge.

         15                 That investment means that New York

         16  Harbor is cleaner than it has been in over 100

         17  years, and we are regaining our natural heritage.

         18                 But the Harbor is still not clean

         19  enough all of the time. Because most of our combined

         20  sewer system was constructed before storm and

         21  sanitary sewers were recognized as state-of-the-art,

         22  rainwater is collected along with sewage. Since the

         23  majority of land in New York City is developed or

         24  paved over with impervious surfaces, stormwater runs

         25  off this land and into the combined sewer system
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          2  instead of into the ground. During significant

          3  storms the additional rainfall can overwhelm the

          4  capacity of our sewer lines and wastewater treatment

          5  plants, and this excess discharge is diverted to

          6  waterbodies through Combined Sewer Overflows to

          7  avoid backup into houses or street flooding.

          8                 CSOs, as we'll call them from now on,

          9  contain raw sewage and therefore increase the levels

         10  of fecal coliform, as you've noted, other pathogens,

         11  street litter and other floatables, sedimentation,

         12  odors, and eventually decrease the levels of

         13  dissolved oxygen in receiving waters. These effects

         14  limit aquatic wildlife and recreational use as long

         15  as the contaminant levels remain high. The City's

         16  investments in infrastructure projects have resulted

         17  in enormous improvements, increasing CSO capture

         18  rates from 30 percent in 1980 to 70 percent today.

         19                 Nevertheless, there are still CSOs in

         20  the City. We acknowledge that. The pollutants from

         21  these discharges are removed quickly from many areas

         22  of our harbor, but tend to linger in many of our

         23  manmade and other tributaries, especially those that

         24  are small, have limited tidal action or are adjacent

         25  to industrial, former industrial sites with historic
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          2  discharges.

          3                 In those waters, the effects of CSOs

          4  have created a chronic water quality problem. That

          5  is why PlaNYC focuses on improving the water quality

          6  of these tributaries, as part of our effort to open

          7  90 percent of our waterways to recreation. That's

          8  the goal of PlaNYC and we're sticking to it.

          9                 In general, there are two approaches

         10  to improving our water quality, and the City is

         11  following both paths. First, by law the City must

         12  create a capital plan based on hard infrastructure

         13  solutions to improve water quality.

         14                 These solutions are mandatory and

         15  budgeted. As Commissioner Lloyd of DEP testified

         16  before this Committee in February, the agency is

         17  building two major detention tanks to store sewer

         18  flow for gradual release to wastewater treatment

         19  plans after storms have abated.

         20                 One is underneath Flushing Meadows

         21  Park and will capture approximately 800 million

         22  gallons per year of CSOs. And it began the operation

         23  last spring.

         24                 The other, at Paerdegat Bay in

         25  Canarsie will be able to detain nearly 1.3 billion
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          2  gallons of CSOs per year, and is scheduled for

          3  completion in 2011.

          4                 DEP is upgrading several pumping

          5  stations to increase pumping capacity and divert

          6  more CSOs away from narrow industrial waterways.

          7                 The full infrastructure build-out

          8  currently envisioned in DEP's long-term control

          9  plans will increase CSO capture rates to 75 percent.

         10                 Second, to increase CSO capture rates

         11  further, the City is exploring implementation of

         12  stormwater management systems to reduce the amount

         13  of rainfall that flows into combined sewers.

         14                 These techniques, as you've

         15  mentioned, are known as Best Management Practices or

         16  BMPs. These have the potential to compensate for

         17  some of the dramatic loss of green space that

         18  detained stormwater before development and could be

         19  a pragmatic and sustainable approach to further

         20  reducing CSOs.

         21                 I will discuss the City's experience

         22  with BMPs shortly. Because the City's CSOs come from

         23  temporary surpluses of water that overwhelm the

         24  existing infrastructure, we strongly believe as a

         25  matter of first principle that our efforts must be
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          2  directed to finding those Best Management Practices

          3  that most effectively reduce the quantity of water

          4  flowing into our combined sewer system. Rather than

          5  those that may be directed to treating water quality

          6  at the source. Of course, many do double duty and we

          7  like that.

          8                 Generally speaking, Best Management

          9  Practices comprise a wide range of structural

         10  technologies and non-structural techniques to reduce

         11  runoff. Some structural techniques rely upon

         12  increasing the infiltration of water, rainwater to

         13  the soil. And are therefore suitable to soil types

         14  in groundwater, certain soil types and groundwater

         15  table characteristics.

         16                 Infiltration technologies may have

         17  higher maintenance costs if they are completely

         18  underground.

         19                 Examples of these include porous

         20  pavement, infiltration basins, trenches, and

         21  bioretention areas with special soil mixtures.

         22                 Another group of Best Management

         23  Practices relies on detention and retention

         24  practices to temporarily store stormwater to control

         25  runoff. Examples of these include rooftop detention
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          2  systems, stormwater ponds and wetlands.

          3                 Vegetation in infiltration and

          4  retention areas will also reduce runoff through

          5  biological uptake of water, and will directly

          6  improve water quality through the biological uptake

          7  of sediment and other pollutants.

          8                 Manufactured pretreatment

          9  technologies include oil/grit separators, water

         10  quality access holes, and catchbasin inserts. And

         11  the effectiveness of all of these structural BMPs,

         12  however, must be maintained through inspection and

         13  cleaning.

         14                 We note that in less urbanized areas,

         15  it may be possible to manage stormwater by simply

         16  retaining natural systems and precluding

         17  development.

         18                 For example, New Jersey's latest

         19  stormwater regulations impose a 300-foot buffer

         20  around certain pristine streams, expressly for the

         21  purpose of controlling stormwater pollution.

         22                 And where we have areas of low

         23  density, the City has already utilized natural

         24  drainage corridors to convey, treat and detain

         25  stormwater prior to its release. And these similar
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          2  natural control systems are implemented in the

          3  Bluebelts network of wetlands that drain water from

          4  10,000 acres in Staten Island. A similar effort uses

          5  these space-intensive natural stormwater BMPs in the

          6  Kensico Reservoir watershed.

          7                 But the City typically does not have

          8  existing natural buffers or the space to construct

          9  them. Moreover, as recognized in the U.S. Department

         10  of Transportation Study, called Stormwater Best

         11  Management Practices in what they call an "Ultra

         12  Urban Setting," and this is certainly us, 2002

         13  study, notes that the feasibility of various BMP

         14  technologies is limited by space and design

         15  requirements, and dense land use likely precludes

         16  conventional structural BMPs that you might see in

         17  the suburbs, such as extended tension dry ponds, wet

         18  ponds and infiltration basins.

         19                 BMPs may also include nonstructural

         20  techniques, such as street sweeping, sewer inlet

         21  cleaning and other management measures.

         22                 Water conservation incentives and

         23  measures may also play a part in protecting our

         24  water infrastructure by reducing the total volume of

         25  water that is ultimately discharged to our water
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          2  treatment plants.

          3                 Accordingly, the City must act

          4  responsively to study and evaluate BMPs, determine

          5  whether they can be constructed here in the first

          6  place, whether they're effectiveness decreases over

          7  time, the cost of construction and maintenance and

          8  how each one compares with other stormwater

          9  management options.

         10                 Okay, so that's our general take, and

         11  it's important to understand the general background.

         12  But what is the City doing?

         13                 The Administration is promoting BMPs

         14  through two main initiatives, and PlaNYC addresses

         15  stormwater management problems on a Citywide basis.

         16  It created an interagency BMP task force, and

         17  developed strategies for promoting stormwater

         18  management.

         19                 The group includes representatives

         20  from the Mayor's Office of Operations, DEP, the

         21  Department of Transportation, the Department of

         22  Buildings, Department of Parks and Recreation,

         23  Department of Design and Construction, Department of

         24  City Planning, the Office of Management and Budget,

         25  Mayor's Office of Contract Services, Mayor's Office
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          2  of Capital Projects, SCA and the Economic

          3  Development Corporation.

          4                 I think we've left very few off, but

          5  if we did, we're certainly trying to catch all of

          6  them. Anybody related in any way with stormwater

          7  management.

          8                 The task force was launched in May

          9  2007 and to date has had over 35 hours of internal

         10  meetings, and those are continuing. We've held two

         11  public stakeholder meetings as well, and our goal

         12  is, and our commitment that we're speaking to, is to

         13  create a comprehensive BMP plan by October 2008.

         14                 In a preexisting and now parallel

         15  effort, the City developed the Jamaica Bay Watershed

         16  Protection Plan, and released it on October 1, 2007,

         17  as required by Local Law 71.

         18                 The Jamaica Bay Plan, developed

         19  through extensive work over two years, addresses

         20  flooding, ecological protection, water quality and

         21  planning, throughout that one particular watershed,

         22  which is a large one.

         23                 It recognizes that one of the key

         24  challenges to the health of the bay is controlling

         25  untreated discharges from 40 percent of the City
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          2  that drains into the Jamaica Bay watershed.

          3                 The impacts of these discharges are

          4  heightened by landslide development, bulkhead

          5  construction, dredging and wetlands fill, all of

          6  which have altered the ecosystem.

          7                 Based on preliminary estimates of

          8  cost and effectiveness, and certain assumptions

          9  about the penetration of BMP technologies throughout

         10  the watershed, the Jamaica Bay Plan estimated that

         11  the use of BMPs could reduce six to 24 percent of

         12  the untreated discharges to the bay, at a cost,

         13  however, of 400 million to 5.2 billion. Just in that

         14  watershed. Clearly, investments on this scale should

         15  be considered carefully.

         16                 In order to test DEP's assumptions

         17  and estimates, the Jamaica Bay Plan proposed several

         18  pilot projects. In the upcoming year, DEP will build

         19  a blue roof and a green roof on two existing

         20  commercial buildings for a comparative study, in

         21  conjunction with the Department of Parks and

         22  Recreation and Gaia Institute, DEP will also

         23  construct five innovative designs for tree pits that

         24  will contain underground water storage devices.

         25                 DEP will also begin the distribution
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          2  of 1,000 rain barrels to homeowners, expand its

          3  program to remove sediments that block the sewer

          4  system, design the introduction of the oyster reef

          5  and ribbed mussels, which happened to be our natural

          6  filters many years ago, build porous pavement on DEP

          7  facility parking lots and other areas, and roll out

          8  a water conservation program to reduce discharges.

          9                 All of these pilot projects which

         10  were introduced in last year's budget, included in

         11  last year's budget for the 2008 Fiscal Year, will be

         12  rigorously monitored and studied.

         13                 The results of these studies will

         14  allow DEP to set specific CSO reduction targets,

         15  while increasing sustainability and effectiveness in

         16  Jamaica Bay.

         17                 In addition, DEP will be letting a

         18  contract to support PlaNYC by evaluating the

         19  effectiveness of stormwater BMPs contained in the

         20  Jamaica Bay Plan with regard to other water bodies.

         21                 The study will evaluate strategies

         22  for high and low volume stormwater capture at high

         23  and low costs.

         24                 It will also quantify the benefits

         25  from BMPs in new construction, compared to BMPs on
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          2  existing properties of different types.

          3                 Recommendations from the completed

          4  study will become the basis for DEP-issued BMP

          5  design manual, and revisions to the sewer code to

          6  better facilitate stormwater management.

          7                 The interagency BMP task force report

          8  will include information and suggestions from the

          9  Jamaica Bay Plan in this pilot project, as well as

         10  ongoing and related City efforts, such as the work

         11  of the Interagency Flooding Task Force, the

         12  Department of Transportation and DEP's inclusion of

         13  two large vegetated swales in the Belt Parkway

         14  renovation project.

         15                 The interagency BMP Task Force Report

         16  will also reflect the efforts of the Parks

         17  Department's Green Streets Program, which has

         18  piloted the small scale diversion of water from

         19  roadbeds and sidewalks into planting, and will

         20  release a monitoring report on plant mortality and

         21  the quantity and quality of runoff within the year.

         22                 The Interagency BMP Task Force Report

         23  will provide for the incorporation of proven soft

         24  infrastructure solutions into the design and

         25  construction of public and private projects on a
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          2  Citywide basis.

          3                 The Task Force will also examine

          4  regulatory and financial incentives for retrofitting

          5  existing buildings and facilities and the financial

          6  ways and means for building and maintaining a

          7  distributed stormwater control network.

          8                 BMP Task Force report is but one

          9  element of PlaNYC's efforts to improve water

         10  quality, preserve natural areas and protect the City

         11  from projected impacts of climate change.

         12                 Related water quality elements of the

         13  plan include:

         14                 - the expansion of green and

         15  permeable open spaces across the City to reduce

         16  stormwater runoff, such as the 1 Million Tree

         17  Initiative launched on October 9th.

         18                 - the expansion of the Bluebelt

         19  Program to drain water from 4,000 additional acres

         20  on Staten Island and extension of that program to

         21  three locations in Queens, being Udalls' Cove and

         22  Brookville Boulevard West, Springfield Lake, and

         23  Baisley Pond, the adoption of high level storm

         24  sewers in appropriate locations, and the development

         25  of a comprehensive wetlands policy.
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          2                 The Administration has also proposed

          3  a tax abatement for the private construction of

          4  green roofs to provide seed money for that industry

          5  and, hopefully, to gain information and reduce

          6  runoff in the meantime. Together, these elements

          7  will improve the quality of New York City's waters.

          8                 The question has been raised about

          9  why we cannot adopt specific BMPs that are currently

         10  implemented on some scale in other cities without

         11  further study.

         12                 The general answer is that no other

         13  City is like New York. And no City has adopted BMPs

         14  on the scale that we have proposed.

         15                 For example, Milwaukee has adopted a

         16  rain barrel giveaway program, and Chicago has a

         17  green roof incentive program and a demonstration

         18  project on its city hall. Those efforts, while

         19  admirable, are simply not on the scale we need to

         20  adopt to make a dent in our CSO problem.

         21                 BMPs that work in cities such as

         22  Chicago and Milwaukee, which have very suburban

         23  characteristics right inside the City limits, may

         24  not work here.

         25                 Our strategies must be tailored to
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          2  New York City's densely built environment, and take

          3  into account the overall impermeability of the

          4  City's topography.

          5                 Other programs adopted in Portland

          6  and Seattle, for example, are suitable for those

          7  temperate zones, but aren't tested in our wintery

          8  conditions, where frozen ground may limit the

          9  control of snow melt or winter rain and cause

         10  considerable damage to other properties or street

         11  flooding or ice.

         12                 Philadelphia has a program to create

         13  rainwater parks and empty lots, but that program was

         14  made possible in part to the City's loss of ten

         15  percent of its population between 1980 and 2000.

         16                 Fortunately, New York City does not

         17  face that same fate. There is no place like New

         18  York, and we must take the time to find the right

         19  BMPs to work here.

         20                 Related issues specific to New York

         21  are the cost of construction in a dense urban

         22  environment, and of maintaining BMPs over time. The

         23  City recognizes that any comprehensive stormwater

         24  management plan will have to address such costs.

         25  BMPs on municipal property will have to be supported
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          2  by the public budget.

          3                 DEP's construction and the

          4  maintenance of the water and sewer system are

          5  supported by fees paid by property owners for water

          6  and sewer service.

          7                 BMPs on private land will have to be

          8  supported by funding as well. Through some

          9  combination of tax incentives, credits and mandated

         10  changes to the building and sewer code.

         11                 These considerations underscore the

         12  importance of pilots to evaluate the effectiveness

         13  of these strategies used in other cities. Using a

         14  combination of direct measurement, quantifiable

         15  assessments of targets and results and modeling of

         16  impacts.

         17                 Well, enough about us. Back to you.

         18  The City Council addressed this in a suite of bills

         19  that are before us today. And against the background

         20  that I've described, at some length, the bills

         21  before the Committee contain many useful additional

         22  and important elements of a comprehensive stormwater

         23  management plan.

         24                 The Administration looks forward to

         25  working with the Council on pursuing innovative and
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          2  alternative techniques to improve water quality. And

          3  the Administration appreciates the need for

          4  comprehensive stormwater management plan. And in

          5  particular for source control measurements.

          6                 We do support the use of BMPs as a

          7  stormwater management technique. Taking the package

          8  of stormwater bills at a whole, the Administration

          9  is concerned that any mandates for implementation of

         10  BMPs on both public and private property may not be

         11  useful at this stage in the development of BMP

         12  strategies. Various entities within the

         13  Administration are developing basic information

         14  about the effectiveness of BMPs over time and the

         15  cost of construction and maintenance.

         16                 All of that information will be

         17  important to the selection of a sound affordable

         18  City policy, but is not available now.

         19                 We believe then, in general, that any

         20  stormwater bills have to reflect that uncertainty

         21  cannot prescribe measures that might prove

         22  infeasible or unworkable.

         23                 In short, we must develop sound

         24  policy through a thorough planning process first.

         25                 Accordingly, I will focus my remarks
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          2  today on the principle stormwater bill, Intro. 630.

          3  As we believe that a study and report that would

          4  come out of such a bill is necessary before

          5  considering the implications of Introduction 628,

          6  629, 321 and 178.

          7                 The Administration supports the

          8  spirit of Intro. 630, and we will lay out today our

          9  concerns about specific elements of the bill that

         10  will require further discussion with the members of

         11  this Committee and the Council.

         12                 Leaving aside for the moment details

         13  about definitions and deadlines, and other important

         14  line changes, I will outline here the

         15  Administration's principle concerns with the bill in

         16  its current form, make certain suggestions about the

         17  framework of future discussions with Council.

         18                 Intro. 630 appears to mandate a study

         19  for every water body in the City that will be as

         20  extensive as the recently completed Jamaica Bay

         21  Watershed Protection Plan.

         22                 The Jamaica Bay Plan has

         23  significantly advanced the City's understanding of

         24  BMPs and other aspects of improving the ecological

         25  health of the Bay. However, the study required two
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          2  years of time and significant resources complete,

          3  and the implementation and monitoring of its

          4  recommendations will take several more years.

          5                 DEP does not have the resources to

          6  undertake similar studies for every water body. We

          7  do not believe that such a study is feasible for

          8  every water body in the City in these conditions,

          9  and that the mandatory requirements of the proposed

         10  stormwater plans will have to be limited.

         11                 Intro. 630 also appears to expand the

         12  focus of such efforts on BMPs for the control of the

         13  quality of stormwater discharged through separate

         14  stormwater sewer systems. Although, the City agrees

         15  that all untreated discharges must be controlled by

         16  BMPs where appropriate, the fact is that CSOs are

         17  the major source of water quality problems in New

         18  York City right now, as you outlined in your

         19  introductory remarks.

         20                 We must prioritize efforts that will

         21  minimize CSOs and cannot afford to undertake related

         22  efforts that how ever well intentioned will take the

         23  focus off CSOs.

         24                 CSO management to date has been

         25  achieved primarily by in-pipe and end-of-pipe
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          2  solutions, such as regulator improvement,

          3  modifications to treatment plants and construction

          4  storage tanks.

          5                 We have already quantified the

          6  improvements in capture rates associated with known

          7  end-of-pipe solutions that were incorporated into

          8  consent orders, and are looking at the BMP

          9  strategies for cost effective additional

         10  improvements in the expected CSO capture rate. But

         11  we do not believe that the available evidence

         12  supports the exclusive use of BMPs to resolve the

         13  CSO problem.

         14                 Ideally, any stormwater management

         15  policy will be broad and flexible enough to allow

         16  for good informed choices between BMP and non-BMP

         17  strategies and then informed choices among various

         18  BMP options, and we note that that combined approach

         19  is one taken by other cities.

         20                 The plan that would be required by

         21  Intro. 630 would mandate BMPs on both public and

         22  private property. The Administration believes that

         23  we should think carefully about the equity of

         24  imposing unknown costs for uncertain gains, as well

         25  as the oversight that would be required for
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          2  privately maintained BMPs.

          3                 With regard to the specific plan

          4  elements required by Intro. 630, many may be

          5  sensible in the future and indeed are inevitable.

          6  However, before the completion of our pilot studies,

          7  many required elements are simply infeasible.

          8                 One example that we pull out is in

          9  Section (c)(1)(ii), which would require a statement

         10  of all the properties or areas in each waterbody

         11  where each BMP is feasible.

         12                 To make that statement, we would have

         13  to have better knowledge of the technical

         14  requirements of each BMP and the feasibility of

         15  construction in field conditions over time, and that

         16  knowledge will come from our pilot projects.

         17                 We would also have to have more

         18  extensive mapping than is currently available.

         19                 Other mandatory elements would force

         20  the City to make premature judgments subject to

         21  revision after the pilot projects and other ongoing

         22  efforts are completed.

         23                 Examples include the requirements to

         24  set forth the metrics to be used for measurement,

         25  for a cost/benefit analysis of each technology,
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          2  incentives, code amendments, construction standards,

          3  right-of-way protections, and modeling to support

          4  all of those conclusions.

          5                 The mandate in Section (c)(1)(vii)

          6  for the "routine and contemporaneous" notice of

          7  untreated CSO discharges, the "locations where water

          8  quality is likely to be adversely affected by such

          9  discharge, and of the nature and duration of water

         10  quality conditions that are potentially harmful to

         11  users of affected waters" is a matter addressed, we

         12  believe, in the State-issued discharge permits, and

         13  we believe that that is the appropriate forum for

         14  those changes.

         15                 However, we do know that if such a

         16  requirement were interpreted as requiring real-time

         17  measurements of the amount of discharges from each

         18  CSO outfall, then DEP would be unable to comply.

         19                 In summary, we look forward to

         20  working with the Council on Intro. 630 to address

         21  our concerns and to develop a workable and sensible

         22  stormwater management planning process.

         23                 To turn to the other specific bills

         24  for the moment, we believe that Intros 628, 629, 321

         25  and 178 should be considered after the City issues
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          2  its report and can develop a more complete

          3  understanding of the costs and benefits of specific

          4  stormwater management measures. That being said, I

          5  will discuss each of the bills in brief.

          6                 Intro 628 would mandate the diversion

          7  of stormwater runoff from adjacent streets into tree

          8  pits. This mandate appears to rely on assumptions

          9  that runoff from impervious surfaces will benefit

         10  street trees, or at least not harm them, and that

         11  the area beneath the sidewalk that is created to

         12  contain this runoff is stable enough to maintain

         13  adequate drainage over time.

         14                 The Parks Department in particular in

         15  particular is concerned that runoff containing

         16  varying amounts of contaminants, including motor oil

         17  and salt, will harm trees and thereby jeopardize the

         18  Million Tree Initiative investment.

         19                 While the City has not reached the

         20  final decision on whether its street tree pits can

         21  be used for stormwater management, it is convinced

         22  that supporting research is still in its infancy.

         23                 We note that DEP is currently

         24  studying the effectiveness and cost of five advanced

         25  tree pits in its Jamaica Bay study, and the
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          2  construction and monitoring of that pilot will take

          3  three years to complete.

          4                 In addition, the mandatory inclusion

          5  of stormwater chambers in all street tree pits would

          6  impose significant additional costs, and would

          7  thereby drastically limit the budgeted plantings in

          8  the Administration's ambitious tree planting

          9  program.

         10                 We believe that it is prudent to

         11  withhold mandating stormwater diversion towards

         12  street trees, which happen to be the smallest scale

         13  and most vulnerable plant installations in New York

         14  City, until we can develop information about the

         15  short- or long-term impacts of such action.

         16                 Regarding Intro. 629, the

         17  Administration recognizes the need for the

         18  incorporation of stormwater management at the design

         19  stage, according to well-thought-out standards.

         20                 These standards should reflect our

         21  understanding of construction, operation and

         22  maintenance costs, as well as the effects, if any,

         23  on property damage, business loss, and damage to

         24  infrastructure and economic vitality.

         25                 Such standards should also reflect
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          2  our understanding of the applicability, cost

          3  effectiveness, efficiency and durability of

          4  different BMPs.

          5                 Finally, such standards should

          6  account for oversight and compliance during and

          7  after construction.

          8                 Since this bill refers to standards

          9  to be developed through the planning process

         10  anticipated in Intro. 630, the Administration

         11  believes that it is premature to impose a shifting

         12  standard now on capital projects of a certain size.

         13                 Regarding Intro. 321, the

         14  Administration has similar concerns related to the

         15  application of standards that do not yet and cannot

         16  yet exist.

         17                 We have to know what works first, and

         18  the specific cross-reference used as an example in

         19  the bill may well be obsolete when the planning

         20  process is concluded.

         21                 It is important not to authorize

         22  on-site infiltration BMPs where soil conditions are

         23  unsuitable.

         24                 Finally, this provision again raises

         25  the issue of appropriate oversight of privately

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  maintained BMPs.

          3                 All of these issues will be addressed

          4  in the Interagency BMP Task Force report, and in the

          5  pilot projects undertaken as a result of the Jamaica

          6  Bay Plan.

          7                 Finally, Intro. 178 deals with a real

          8  problem: dry wells for on-site stormwater drainage.

          9  However, this bill would drastically slow the

         10  issuance of permits by the Department of Buildings,

         11  as DEP would first have to review the methodology

         12  and findings of every soil boring and percolation

         13  test across the City.

         14                 There is also a question of whether

         15  the bill is consistent with the previous provision,

         16  24-526 of the Administrative Code, dealing with

         17  off-site stormwater disposal, and whether the bill

         18  would render the off-site stormwater disposal

         19  requirement a nullity.

         20                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         21  testify. I, and my colleagues in the Administration,

         22  will be glad to answer any questions that you may

         23  have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Strickland, for your comprehensive testimony. We
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          2  appreciate the amount of work that went into it, and

          3  it is certainly recognized by this Chair that you're

          4  doing a lot. You've focused a lot of brainwaves on

          5  stormwater management certainly.

          6                 I guess my preliminary comments would

          7  be, and this is an issue that transcends this

          8  particular suite of bills or the issue of

          9  stormwater, and that is the need before the clock

         10  runs out on this administration, and on this Council

         11  to crystalize in some form legislation that will

         12  keep the spirit of PlaNYC and the environmental

         13  consciousness of this Committee and this Council

         14  moving forward once we're not here. And it's

         15  critically important to get that done.

         16                 And, certainly, it is very easy,

         17  perhaps even constructive, to put forward a host of

         18  reasons why something can't happen, or it can't

         19  happen now, unless X, Y or Z happens first. But as

         20  the Mayor himself is pointing out, isn't there a

         21  clock up in the bull pen or something like that,

         22  with like time remaining, days, hours, minutes,

         23  weeks, seconds, months or whatever until we're all

         24  vaporized? There is need to figure out a way to get

         25  this done, like before we're gone.
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          2                 And I am heartened by the passage in

          3  your statement that talks about, "In summary, we

          4  look forward to working with the Council on Intro.

          5  630 to address our concerns and to develop a

          6  workable and sensible stormwater management planning

          7  process.

          8                 I am interpreting this passage, I

          9  interpret this statement to be that you recognize

         10  the imperative of getting a bill done; is that a

         11  fair assessment?

         12                 MR. STRICKLAND: We look forward to

         13  working with you on a bill, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         15                 And that's good, and we certainly

         16  appreciate that commitment. That's on 630, right? On

         17  630.

         18                 MR. STRICKLAND: Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, it would be

         20  the Administration's belief that there is enough

         21  common ground that we share significant to put a pen

         22  to paper and get something done on stormwater, yes?

         23                 MR. STRICKLAND: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, good. So,

         25  we're getting a bill, ladies and gentlemen, so
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          2  that's a good thing.

          3                 And, now, with regard to the trees,

          4  which one is that? Which is the tree bill? 628. And

          5  we're joined by Mike McMahon, the savior of

          6  Arlington Marsh. We appreciate your being here. I

          7  had a little role in that, too. And Mike and I had a

          8  nice boat ride where we looked at it from the water.

          9  It's a whole Arlington Marsh story. It will be a

         10  chapter in my book, so you'll get to see it.

         11                 With regard to the trees, it would

         12  just seem that if we didn't take this opportunity of

         13  the planting of a million trees to do at least

         14  something, to use that critical endeavor to make

         15  some level of impact on stormwater mitigation, it

         16  would seem a shame.

         17                 I mean, we have street trees all over

         18  the City now. You indicated in your statement that

         19  there are concerns that the tree pits will get oil,

         20  they'll get grease, they'll get antifreeze, other

         21  kinds of noxious things in there that could

         22  deleteriously, you know, impact the vegetation, and

         23  we understand that, but those things are happening

         24  now in tree pits, and a lot of the trees I see

         25  around the City look fine, and I will indicate that
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          2  at least in my district, the Parks Department, with

          3  credit, is taking some of the preexisting tree pits

          4  and retrofitting them to make them bigger, deeper

          5  and more able to be a receptacle, if you will, for

          6  stormwater.

          7                 So, this is something that the Parks

          8  Department is doing on existing tree pits right now

          9  and we have a million trees to be planted and to

         10  miss this opportunity is being silly in the extreme.

         11  And while we may differ on what kind of substructure

         12  we put in there to sort of formally engineer some

         13  kind of chamber under there or whatever, it would

         14  seem a shame to miss this opportunity. So, I would

         15  like to think that going forward in the City when we

         16  plant trees, we'll be doing something for the air

         17  and for carbon sequestration and all of that, but if

         18  we can create some real measurable value-added for

         19  stormwater for tree planting we can and should do

         20  that and it should be crystalized within the bill.

         21                 So, I'm still bullish on the tree pit

         22  bill, and I want to know why we can't do that.

         23                 MR. STRICKLAND: I'm going to defer to

         24  the representative of Parks. I don't know if you

         25  want to swear him in first?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Samara.

          3                 MS. SWANSTON: Would you state your

          4  name, please?

          5                 MR. GUNTHER: I'm Braham Gunther, and

          6  I am the Deputy Director for Forestry and

          7  Horticulture for the Parks Department.

          8                 MS. SWANSTON: Do you swear or affirm

          9  to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

         10  the truth today?

         11                 MR. GUNTHER: Yes.

         12                 MS. SWANSTON: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. He tells

         14  the truth every day I'm sure.

         15                 MR. GUNTHER: Talk to my wife.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I just

         17  spoke to mine.

         18                 MR. GUNTHER: Right.

         19                 Well, for us the issue is, as you

         20  have stated and we have stated also, the issue is

         21  actually more about the drainage of a street tree

         22  pit. Although, we'll never be able to completely

         23  quantify what chemicals are in the stormwater runoff

         24  of the sidewalk or the road, it's the ability of a

         25  pit that's usually five by eight, historically it
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          2  used to be three by three, and even as you

          3  mentioned, we're going back and retrofitting as many

          4  pits as we can, there is still a small space. And in

          5  storm events of any kind, and I couldn't quantify

          6  that at the moment, but a spectrum of storm events,

          7  that street tree pit might be water logged. And as

          8  it is water logged, in general, even if there were

          9  no pollutants in the water itself, a water logged

         10  pit could kill the tree. If you then add salt and

         11  bleach and motor oil and what other chemicals might

         12  be there, it could ultimately kill the tree.

         13                 So, we feel, from the Parks

         14  Department, in particular in Forestry and

         15  Horticulture, that we need to study what's coming

         16  in, at what rate it's coming in, the rate of

         17  drainage before we willy-nilly create all of these

         18  stormwater capture entrees into the street tree pit.

         19                 So, we just would like to collect

         20  data --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I'm the

         22  last one to, you know, to go, you know, willy-nilly

         23  on anything, but presumably a bigger tree pit would

         24  allow for more assimilation, less water logging, you

         25  know, better ability for the tree to, you know, to

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  have the area be dispersed, and there has got to be

          3  a line that we can draw that if we're more

          4  aggressive than -- if we go too aggressive, we're

          5  going to end up killing trees and we don't want to

          6  do that. But we should, you know, figure out the

          7  best design possible and put that forward, and this

          8  is not, you know, planting trees is not a new

          9  concept, and I don't mean to be flip or anything,

         10  but there has got to be sort of the ultimate design

         11  or whatever, and that's really what we're calling

         12  for, particularly on the precipice of planting a

         13  million trees, to plant a million trees and then

         14  sort of retrofit those million tree pits once we

         15  figure out the best way to do it would seem like a

         16  waste of resources and it wouldn't get done.

         17                 So, those million trees should be

         18  planted with the tree pit design that, you know,

         19  accomplishes the multiple purposes of all the air

         20  quality benefits which come from trees, as well as

         21  water quality benefit and that's really what we're

         22  asking for, and to not act on that is not acceptable

         23  from the position of this Committee. And I ask you,

         24  if you had to, if the Mayor called you up tomorrow

         25  and gave you an order and indicated that he wanted
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          2  like the best tree pit design, and he wanted it done

          3  like right away, you know, how would you proceed in

          4  doing that? What would you do?

          5                 MR. GUNTHER: Well, we're already

          6  contemplating the best tree pit designs. We are

          7  evolving over time, as you mentioned, larger pits,

          8  deeper excavation, which gives more room for the

          9  water to be held.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 MR. GUNTHER: Using a layer of either

         12  crushed stone or crushed glass, which we can use,

         13  which is recycled, to be able to access the water.

         14  If we can, having whole block plantings.  We have an

         15  entire trench, like some of the medians are in the

         16  streets, using what's called "structural soil,",

         17  which not only allows for road bearing weight on

         18  top, but underneath for more space for the roots to

         19  both find nutrients and water.

         20                 So, we are trying to do that. I think

         21  the differences or the distinction to be made is

         22  that, of course, all of the water that's running

         23  down the sidewalk is going to find its way, or a

         24  portion of it is going to find its way into the

         25  street tree pit.
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          2                 What I think you're saying, and I

          3  think we're contemplating over time is making cuts

          4  in the road, so when the water is coming down the

          5  road, some of it naturally is going to go into the

          6  pit. No matter what the size is, we're still worried

          7  there is some threshold where the water won't drain

          8  because depending upon where it is, and if it

          9  doesn't drain, will that then kill the trees?

         10                 So, the answer is this: every day

         11  we're trying to make the street trees better, wider,

         12  deeper, and more able to hold and contain water, and

         13  we are just a little nervous and a little anxious

         14  about doing all the street tree pits that way,

         15  particularly in areas where they have to be smaller,

         16  because the infrastructure demands it, without

         17  having some kind of data to work on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly

         19  what this represents is the same kind of give and

         20  take we always get when we're making legislation and

         21  we have elements of 628 or 629, whatever it is, that

         22  perhaps would not be consistent. That there is some

         23  elements in the bill that wouldn't be completely

         24  consistent with tree health, unless we do further

         25  study or whatever. And this is how bills morph in
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          2  negotiations and we kind of get the best thing that

          3  we can get and we crystalize that and then we, you

          4  know, go forward with research and development and

          5  other things that aren't quite ready yet, and that's

          6  okay.

          7                 What we're looking for is to, you

          8  know, get this done now so that when there's

          9  unprecedented planting of a million trees goes in,

         10  we get, you know, we get something, and I think that

         11  makes a lot of sense.

         12                 Would you like to comment on that?

         13                 MR. GUNTHER: Yes, absolutely in

         14  spirit it makes sense. In spirit we agree with you,

         15  and I think because we're trying to make all the

         16  pits larger and deeper, we essentially agree with

         17  that. We're just, as I said, a little anxious about

         18  making those cuts --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But the bill

         20  doesn't actually say that we have to divert water

         21  from the street into the trees. It's not really what

         22  the bill says. And, so, the bill, it doesn't say

         23  that. And, again, we never claim to ever create on

         24  our own, just from the Council, but perfect

         25  legislation that we don't have to talk to the
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          2  Administration about, we just go out and pass. We

          3  are very much dependent on your ability as experts

          4  to inform our legislative process here so we get

          5  legislation that's made better by consultation with

          6  you. This is how --

          7                 MR. GUNTHER: I agree.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is how we

          9  get it done. We're getting 629, too, I guess. And,

         10  so --

         11                 MR. STRICKLAND: 628. I have to say,

         12  that was 628.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, 629. Okay.

         14  Math is not my specialty. So, whatever number it is.

         15  We should get those names, that's like the tree pit

         16  bill, that's easier for people to -- yes, they're

         17  all named bill, I guess. I guess I'm infectious here

         18  or something like that, and Dan is picking up on

         19  that. And we have Bill DeBlasio here from Brooklyn,

         20  a great tree planter in his own right.

         21                 With regard to the capital

         22  construction bill, it also doesn't really impose

         23  sort of strict standards. You know, it generally

         24  indicates that as we increase City government's

         25  built environment, and we're building these
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          2  projects, that we have an eye on stormwater and we

          3  do the best job we can with regard to mitigating the

          4  impacts on stormwater from City construction

          5  projects in kind of like the best way possible. It

          6  seems, you know, pretty innocuous and something that

          7  we ought to be focusing on and we ought to be

          8  leading by example. And, so, I could see opposition

          9  that's born out of the imposition of some kind of

         10  strict regimen or something that you just don't

         11  agree with, but this is really not the case with

         12  that bill, as I understand it. When we're doing

         13  capital projects we should have a planning process

         14  in which we mitigate stormwater impacts on those

         15  projects and that does not sound unreasonable when

         16  we're looking at a situation by your own admission,

         17  where, you know, CSO discharges, or whatever, which

         18  we have a 70 percent capture rate, where through

         19  end-of-pipe solutions or whatever are only going to

         20  get up to 75 percent capture, which is still going

         21  to leave us with billions and billions of gallons of

         22  CSO problems and all kinds of stormwater problems.

         23                 So, it seems that everything we can

         24  be doing we should be doing. So, we're just

         25  questioning why it would be impossible to sort of
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          2  move forward on a capital project stormwater bill.

          3  There's got to be a way to do that.

          4                 MR. STRICKLAND: On Intro. 629, as you

          5  did say, it does seem to refer to in part standards

          6  to be developed out of the planning process

          7  anticipated by Intro. 630. However, we really do

          8  think this is putting the cart before the horse. We

          9  don't know what the outcome of 630 is going to be,

         10  and these capital projects, there will be certainly

         11  a cost effect on these projects, and we just think

         12  that since the standard is not going to be developed

         13  until the report is done, we don't see the need to

         14  sort of anticipate that and get that into place now.

         15                 We do think that the standard should

         16  reflect our understandings of not only construction

         17  cost but maintenance cost over time so that we can

         18  build that into the budgeting process.

         19                 That's really our major concern. With

         20  this bill there is some question, too, given that

         21  the first sentence in it seems to propose a

         22  narrative standard of minimizing post construction

         23  discharge. There is a question that arises of what

         24  would happen in the interim before the report comes

         25  out, if it's going to be effective immediately.
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          2                 So, on this bill, if it -- obviously,

          3  everybody in the room wants stormwater bills to mean

          4  something at the end of the day, and if it's going

          5  to mean something in a sort of general direction of

          6  City policy would be established in the major bill.

          7  On this specific bill with City capital projects, we

          8  do think costs are an important consideration.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         10                 I'm going to respond in a minute. I'm

         11  just going to indicate that we're joined by Council

         12  Member Yassky, the sponsor of the bill that we're

         13  hearing today, Intro. 321.

         14                 Yes, I guess the thinking from our

         15  point of view is that if a Citywide plan on all

         16  aspects of stormwater, which is, you know, complex

         17  and an endeavor to undertake, is going to be

         18  completed by -- what is it, 2008? October 2008,

         19  which is less than a year from now. The issue of

         20  that stormwater in all of its manifestations, in

         21  every part of the City and in every stripe and

         22  color, but with regard to construction projects,

         23  that's sort of like a much narrower, you know, slice

         24  of the pie to focus on. It seems conceivable that if

         25  one were to, you know, focus some effort on figuring
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          2  out what the standards should be for construction

          3  projects, that would be a much simpler exercise than

          4  the City, you know, in totality, and we should be

          5  able to get that done sooner than waiting for a

          6  whole year from now. Because we have, you know,

          7  construction projects going on and we should lead by

          8  example, and presumably this is an area in which

          9  some work has already been done.

         10                 I mean, look at the standards that

         11  are set up on the watershed, you know, for their

         12  construction projects, or whatever we -- New York

         13  City talks a good game about making sure that

         14  private developers up in the Catskill Delaware and

         15  Croton Watersheds, you know, minimize all kinds of

         16  runoff and construction or whatever, because we

         17  don't want the construction projects up there

         18  disturbing the watershed and having a bad effect on

         19  water quality.

         20                 So, we're already mandating other

         21  people, you know, to do this in their construction

         22  projects, so this is not a subject area with which

         23  we're unfamiliar, and it seems we could sort of

         24  graph some of those standards to what we're doing

         25  here for our own stormwater needs. We just don't
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          2  think it's the same lift as doing an entire

          3  stormwater plan for the entire City.

          4                 So, hence, you know, we should be

          5  able to get this done before we have the entire

          6  stormwater plan, and that's our position, one that

          7  we're comfortable with and are going to be

          8  advancing.

          9                 How's that?

         10                 MR. STRICKLAND: Do you want a

         11  response?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, let me

         13  just sort of put that on the record then. It's

         14  something that we remain committed to, and while I'm

         15  contemplating further questions, I'd like to open it

         16  up to Council Member Yassky, who I'm sure is going

         17  to want to talk to you about Intro. 321.

         18                 Council Member Yassky.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         20  And, you know, let me just start by thanking you,

         21  Mr. Chairman, for, you know, you've done already

         22  extraordinary work on water quality and the CSO

         23  issue and I really thank you and commend you for

         24  holding this hearing and bringing these bills

         25  forward today.
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          2                 You've had discussions, so I'm not

          3  going to reiterate it. I will just focus on 321, if

          4  I can, Mr. Strickland. And I apologize I was

          5  delayed, but I read your testimony, if I understand

          6  it, the basic idea, just so I make sure I'm on the

          7  same page of the bill that I put in, 321, is to say

          8  while certainly in a City like this where most land

          9  is occupied and highly developed, we're going to

         10  have to drain stormwater into a runoff sewer system,

         11  there are places where there are opportunities not

         12  to do that and simply to drain off into the ground.

         13  That's the simple idea.

         14                 If I understand your testimony, and

         15  what the bill intends to do, and tell me if you read

         16  it differently, is simply say that and then kind of

         17  authorize or really direct, I guess, the DEP and the

         18  Buildings Department to put out some standards so

         19  that homeowners could have the opportunity to do

         20  that or developers, builders could have the

         21  opportunity to do that if they fit the standards.

         22                 And my question is do you think

         23  that's a good idea?

         24                 MR. STRICKLAND: We certainly think

         25  that infiltration is going to be a key part of
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          2  stormwater policy, no question about it.

          3                 The question is where you do it and

          4  how you do it and the plan that we're developing is

          5  going to look very seriously at that.

          6                 You know, our concerns about this

          7  bill relate in part to simply timing with regard to

          8  Intro. 630, which puts in place a planning process.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, on this

         10  one, again, do I understand you to be saying we

         11  think that's a good idea. We're intending to do it,

         12  or at least we're working in a process that we think

         13  will lead toward doing that, toward some standards

         14  that will allow homeowners to not, you know, not to

         15  send stormwater into the sewer system, and we can't

         16  say that we'll be able to do that because we haven't

         17  finished our process, but that's our intention and

         18  we're working toward doing that; is that fair to

         19  say?

         20                 MS. LICATA: Fair to say. In addition,

         21  because I'm not disagreeing with you, in addition

         22  it's just simply that the soil types in the City are

         23  very diverse and that gets complicated by layers of

         24  urban fill that are on top of what would otherwise

         25  be good soils for percolation, and then that gets
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          2  further complicated by an often high groundwater

          3  table.

          4                 So, it's just simply a matter of

          5  getting it right in the right application.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I think that's

          7  consistent. And if you're reading this to be more

          8  limiting, or kind of constrain to make -- if you're

          9  reading this bill to make more claims about what

         10  standards you ought to have than I think I'm making,

         11  tell me. But it doesn't intend to do that. It simply

         12  says there will be places we can do this, let's do

         13  it. You guys, you know, do the work to tell people

         14  when to do it.

         15                 I would just say, I think there is

         16  some benefit to doing legislation. I think, first of

         17  all, it puts it on the books that we're going to. It

         18  gives an extra push to doing it and some, you know,

         19  sets up in my view a legal framework that would lead

         20  to that result.

         21                 I guess you're saying let us keep

         22  thinking about it, I don't think that's necessarily

         23  an obstacle to moving this legislation and getting

         24  the framework set so that you can go ahead and fill

         25  in the details. But I'll leave that to the
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          2  leadership of this Committee and of the body. But

          3  certainly my take is we should move ahead, that way

          4  we do take a small step toward getting it done.

          5                 And just to be clear, I don't make

          6  extravagant claims for what this bill will do in

          7  terms of diverting water from the combined sewer

          8  system, but every little bit helps, and I think it

          9  would be a step worth taking.

         10                 MS. LICATA: Yes. Just to add, I mean

         11  we certainly want to achieve those objectives that

         12  the bill introduces. And while doing that, we want

         13  to just make sure that we don't walk too far away

         14  from what those codes on the books currently today

         15  were established to do, which is to prevent

         16  collateral damages that might occur from one

         17  neighbor disconnecting from a sewer system and then

         18  sending stormwater to another neighbor's yard, or

         19  ending in a situation where there is sufficient

         20  water on the street to make, you know, passage

         21  implausible --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Look, and I

         23  don't want to delay, I mean, to be clear, my

         24  expectation is the bulk of the City, this is not

         25  possible to do this. That's the City we live in
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          2  here. But also I'm equally sure there are places we

          3  can do it, and every bit helps, so we ought to do it

          4  where we can. That's the bottom line. It sounds like

          5  we agree and I look forward to your work.

          6                 The timetable for the task force is?

          7                 MR. STRICKLAND: PlaNYC, October 2008.

          8  That's what we're hitting for our report.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: On stormwater

         10  best practices?

         11                 MR. STRICKLAND: Stormwater

         12  management, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         16  David.

         17                 Certainly we've talked about the

         18  problems of CSOs, in terms of their impact on the

         19  City's water body, in terms of raw sewage, the

         20  impact on recreation, and the ecological health of

         21  our water. And, so, the question is, which is

         22  difficult to answer perhaps, but the annual cost of

         23  these impacts, cost in all of its manifestations,

         24  has that ever been quantified, the so-called annual

         25  costs of all of these impacts?
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          2                 MS. LICATA: To my knowledge, that has

          3  never been done.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: There's a

          5  question prepared by staff, which I'll just read.

          6                 In our February 14th, 2007 hearing on

          7  sustainability goals, DEP testified that they would

          8  have results from pilots regarding stormwater

          9  control strategies by September, I guess September

         10  '07, that would provide a technical understanding

         11  of the applications, the cost of these applications,

         12  the way that they could penetrate our environment,

         13  the timetable associated with the penetration and

         14  ultimate effect in terms of stormwater volume

         15  reduction. Close quote.

         16                 At what stage are those pilots now?

         17  And what answer have they provided to date about the

         18  issues mentioned above?

         19                 MS. LICATA: The study that was

         20  completed pursuant to the Jamaica Plan looked at the

         21  best of BMPs that are available to us, the suite of

         22  BMPs that really could work within the urban

         23  environment identified in certain sections of

         24  Brooklyn and Queens that drain into Jamaica Bay. We

         25  looked at prototypes on certain land uses. So, let's
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          2  say we know we have a lot that's, you know, 40 by

          3  100, 40 by 80, what kind of BMPs can you fit on that

          4  lot? What type of application is best suited to that

          5  lot, under a low cost and then a high cost? And then

          6  we said, let's look at the amount of development

          7  that's projected over time. Now, we know we have

          8  this population increase anticipated, and if there

          9  were just certain turnover and we were to mandate

         10  new construction, develop along with accompanying

         11  BMPs, what would that do? What kind of volume would

         12  we capture in those circumstances? And that figure

         13  wasn't really very dramatic, so we said, well,

         14  obviously the existing environment is appreciable as

         15  well, and what would happen if you went and assumed

         16  that certain existing lots were to somehow convert

         17  properties to incorporate BMPs to manage stormwater.

         18  And then we looked at the volume reduction in

         19  stormwater that you can see from that. And that's

         20  the analysis that is available and ready and we can

         21  share the conclusions of that study with you.

         22                 And, so, when you look at a

         23  technology, for instance, that we're referring to as

         24  a blue roof, and determining whether or not the

         25  penetration of blue roofs through some incentive
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          2  program could provide us with the dramatic types of

          3  results that we're looking for to abate CSOs, then

          4  that's sort of one study that we did in one

          5  microcosm of the City. We have those results at this

          6  point in time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          8  you for those efforts. I'm sure they'll be great

          9  input to what we're trying to do on the stormwater.

         10                 MS. LICATA: The pilots, by the way,

         11  are what we have in a contract that we're gearing up

         12  for to begin in 2008. So, in 2008, we will start to

         13  actually construct these pilot projects that will

         14  give us a better sense of cost in New York City and

         15  a better sense of performance, and actual volume

         16  reduction. And we will obviously share those results

         17  as they become available.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I'd

         19  like to ask you, if you could I guess kind of spell

         20  out the difference between what would come out of

         21  your planning process in October 2008, you know,

         22  versus what Intro. 630 would require. What's the

         23  difference there?

         24                 MR. STRICKLAND: One thing that 630, I

         25  have semi-general comments, and I do look forward to
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          2  working with you on sort of line-by-line edit. In

          3  general, what the difference is with the bill, there

          4  is a very specific provision in here for requiring

          5  routine and contemporary notification of CSO

          6  discharges. That is one element of the bill that

          7  we've singled out.

          8                 The other is, the more generic

          9  difference would be in C(1)(ii), again, if the

         10  intent is to have in a way a little Jamaica Bay

         11  study for every, each and every watershed, that will

         12  just slow us down and what we hope to do is have a

         13  more holistic suite of, you know, in these kind of

         14  conditions, here is where certain BMPs might be

         15  sufficient. But this book, which is really excellent

         16  and necessary first step, took two years to complete

         17  and a lot of resources, and we don't want to wait

         18  that long.

         19                 I get the sense from the deadlines

         20  that you have in the bill that you don't want to

         21  wait that long either. So, that's really our

         22  concern, is the shape it will take.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         24  you.

         25                 I guess rather than looking at water

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  body by water body and, you know, looking from a

          3  Citywide perspective, I mean, how does one do that

          4  but still sort of capture everything that needs to

          5  be captured and sort of like, what's particular to

          6  one area of the City, kind of like what makes it

          7  Citywide? It seems like there has to be on some

          8  level, one would have to endeavor to look at the

          9  individual areas of the City to come up with the

         10  perfect recipe. And, so, if not a

         11  watershed-by-watershed or water body by water body

         12  approach, then what would be the approach?

         13                 MR. STRICKLAND: I think I'm going to

         14  have Angela describe some specific, she wants to

         15  describe some specific steps that are being taken

         16  right now. But in general, if I could elaborate on

         17  my previous comments, I guess, about the sort of

         18  differences that we see in the approach, what makes

         19  it Citywide and why we believe it's important to get

         20  all of the agencies at the table in the first place,

         21  is that one key focus is not so much -- we know

         22  there is some information, maybe some of it is not

         23  well developed enough to really sink our teeth into

         24  yet, but another whole area that hasn't been looked

         25  at that we are looking very closely at are City
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          2  contracting processes and other sort of design

          3  processes to frontload some of these stormwater

          4  concerns.

          5                 So, that is, again, somewhat of a

          6  difference in approach. But that's not to say we are

          7  waiting. I mean, we are doing some things now, and I

          8  think Angela will describe those.

          9                 MS. LICATA: I thought it was worth

         10  mentioning that as part of this contract really

         11  coming out of the Jamaica Bay planning effort and

         12  information, we will be looking at an additional

         13  four, again, more discrete locations within the

         14  City, just to make sure that we can get a better

         15  sense.

         16                 Because I do think that there is a

         17  trade off here. You can get really detailed and

         18  really specific about all of the variables that one

         19  can counter on various sites, but at the same time

         20  we don't want to pre-design everything Citywide. So,

         21  it's definitely a balance and I think we're looking

         22  to make that part of our comprehensive CSO study

         23  going forward, because we think it is important to

         24  continue to learn about this, as we go forward. I

         25  think it will be a learning experience for us for
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          2  several years to come at this point.

          3                 I just want to mention as well that

          4  what I think is also extremely critical and I think

          5  may even have that included in your bill is that we

          6  develop a manual, and it is something else that the

          7  City is looking to do.

          8                 So, I think our processes are fairly

          9  parallel at this point. And, so, the BMP manual that

         10  we develop will provide, agencies will provide,

         11  potentially even the private sector with the tools

         12  that they need to incorporate even these kinds of

         13  designs on their sites.

         14                 It will give people a real

         15  understanding of what it is and how they design

         16  something so that they avoid sort of the pitfalls

         17  and also at the end of the day can ensure that they

         18  will get a sewer hook-up approval.

         19                 MR. STRICKLAND: Chairman Gennaro, if

         20  I may just put on the record, we're not only in

         21  taking a careful look at this. Stormwater is a

         22  national problem, and, in fact, the EPA and State

         23  and local governments recognize that it's really the

         24  leading remaining cause of water pollution.

         25                 And, in fact, just this year, and not
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          2  that long ago, March 5th, 2007 the EPA, Assistant

          3  Administrator Grumbles, finally put out a memo

          4  endorsing in concept the use of green

          5  infrastructure. They're developing that green

          6  infrastructure database right now, but to let you

          7  know where the EPA, an agency with quite a bit of

          8  resources, is right now, they say they are looking

          9  to work with some of the groups that are here today

         10  and will testify with you to develop additional

         11  strategies for green infrastructure approaches to

         12  water quality challenges.

         13                 And as those strategies take shape,

         14  we, meaning EPA, will send you additional tools and

         15  information on implementing green infrastructure in

         16  our water program. So, there is a sense of infancy

         17  in this whole approach to really getting it to a

         18  point where the rubber can meet the road, that said,

         19  New York is not obviously going to wait for the EPA,

         20  although looks forward to having those tools

         21  available when they become available.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. And the

         23  City, to its credit, and the Mayor to his credit, is

         24  not willing to wait for the powers that be at the

         25  federal government and other levels of government to
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          2  act.

          3                 I credit him for that, and, you know,

          4  we're just trying to play the same role here at the

          5  Council to partner with him, to partner with you,

          6  you know, to get this reduced to writing before

          7  we're all sort of shutting the door.  And it's been

          8  great to work with the Administration on the

          9  sustainability effort, to be appointed to it, and

         10  now the remaining task is to get some bills done.

         11  And we certainly appreciate the intense focus that

         12  the Administration has brought to the whole

         13  sustainability effort, which leads me to be sanguine

         14  on our ability to crystalize so many of those points

         15  of sustainability into legislation before we all go.

         16                 And as you said, there is a lot of

         17  common ground on this when we can get these bills

         18  done.

         19                 We're certainly at this side of the

         20  table, you know, committed to doing that. And you

         21  know, maybe in some of these areas we'll be acting

         22  maybe a little earlier than in a perfect world we

         23  would, but we're just not given the luxury of time,

         24  you know? 25 months and change, that's all we have,

         25  to not only do this, but all of the other elements
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          2  of sustainability. We don't know who's coming next,

          3  and you know, we've just got to get it done and in

          4  partnership with you, I'm sure we'll be able to get

          5  a lot of really good things done over the next 25

          6  months, stormwater included. And, so, I thank you

          7  very much for being here today, for your great

          8  efforts.

          9                 Okay, we've gotten staff to listen

         10  very closely to your testimony, and all of your

         11  answers and all the nuances and all that. They're

         12  smarter than I am. And you know, you just made

         13  reference to City contracting procedures and that

         14  seems to be exactly kind of what we're asking for in

         15  what I call the capital construction bill, whatever

         16  number it is, and so there we have it. You know,

         17  that's another example I think that we can take some

         18  of what you're already contemplating, figure out a

         19  way to reduce it to writing in a general way that

         20  will keep that going forward, you know, past this

         21  Administration. And, so, I guess what they want me

         22  to do is ask you about the ability to get that

         23  capital construction bill done, in light of the fact

         24  that you're already going down that track anyway.

         25                 MR. STRICKLAND: I don't have an
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          2  answer for you today.

          3                 I think it's safe to say, I mean our

          4  concerns are that that bill would seem to impose

          5  some standard before we know what it is, and does

          6  have a threshold of $2 million that may or may not

          7  make sense. It may make sense to have it lower,

          8  might make sense to have it higher, given how we

          9  have to consider not only construction costs, but

         10  very significant operation and maintenance costs

         11  over time, and obviously if those, magnitude of

         12  those costs were to swallow a $2 million project, it

         13  might not make sense.

         14                 So, again, I think it's an area that

         15  we're looking at, but we really need to get a better

         16  grasp of what the implications are before we launch

         17  into it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, fair

         19  enough. Fair enough.

         20                 But I want to thank you for being

         21  here today. We appreciate your testimony, and more

         22  important than that, all the work that you're doing

         23  every day on this important issue. Thank you for

         24  being here, I appreciate it.

         25                 MR. STRICKLAND: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, our next

          3  two witnesses, we're going to be doing people in

          4  panels to try to -- we're going to try to move

          5  people along a little bit. Michael, it looks like

          6  Gresty. Michael Gresty, G-r-e-s-t-y. Representing

          7  E2. And Jordan Barowitz, who didn't put down his

          8  affiliation, but I believe is with the Durst

          9  Organization.

         10                 MR. BAROWITZ: That's correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         12                 Thank you very much for being here.

         13  Counsel will give the oath, and you can proceed with

         14  your testimony. I guess we'll take Mr. Gresty first

         15  and then Mr. Barowitz.

         16                 MS. SWANSTON: Raise your right hand.

         17  Do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole

         18  truth and nothing but the truth today?

         19                 MR. GRESTY: Yes.

         20                 MS. SWANSTON: Thank you.

         21                 (Witness sworn.)

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Gresty. And during your testimony, if you could

         24  describe the relationship between E2 and NRDC, I'm

         25  not familiar with how that works.
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          2                 MR. GRESTY: Certainly I'll do so.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          4                 MR. GRESTY: Thank you for having us

          5  here today.

          6                 My name is Michael Gresty. I am here

          7  on behalf of Environmental Entrepreneurs known as

          8  E2. It's a national community of business people who

          9  believe in protecting the environment while building

         10  economic prosperity.

         11                 Working with NRDC, E2 serves as the

         12  champion on the economic side of good environmental

         13  policy by taking a reasoned economically sound

         14  approach to environmental issues.

         15                 E2 is a bipartisan group working at

         16  the local, state and national levels. Collectively

         17  our members represent over 800 companies who have

         18  created over 400,000 jobs involving financing,

         19  creating and working on these companies. These

         20  members currently represent over $20 billion in

         21  private equity capital that will flow over the next

         22  several years into new companies.

         23                 In New York, E2 has more than 100

         24  members who are in the mainstream of business and

         25  job creation and include prominent figures in
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          2  industries, such as investment, finance, insurance,

          3  real estate and communications.

          4                 We favor a reasoned economically and

          5  sound approach to environmental issues and support

          6  environmental polices that drive healthy economic

          7  growth.

          8                 We strongly support the four bills

          9  before the Committee today, which would mark a major

         10  step forward in ensuring New York's sustainability

         11  over the coming decades.

         12                 Each of the members believe that the

         13  combined sewer overflow problem is a serious

         14  environmental issue the City needs to solve.

         15                 Among other problems, these combined

         16  sewer overflows release pathogens and other

         17  pollutants into the water, posing a danger to public

         18  health, damaging the ecology and frequently making

         19  our waters unsuitable for any recreational

         20  activities and impacting economic development.

         21                 I would like to discuss briefly the

         22  key reasons for our support. In my professional life

         23  I am President of Kinetix Business Ecology, which

         24  provides sustainability strategy consulting services

         25  to large corporations and high performance design or
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          2  green building design and LEED consulting services

          3  to real estate developers.

          4                 We are working on The Edge, a 1.7

          5  million square foot residential project in

          6  Williamsburg now under construction, the new ONE

          7  Hotel and Residences at 40th Street and Bryant Park,

          8  and a ten-story addition to 450 West 14th Street,

          9  which sits astride the new Highline Park, as well as

         10  numerous other office, residential and mixed use

         11  projects in New York and elsewhere.

         12                 450 West 14th Street incorporates

         13  rainwater cisterns and greywater plumbing to reduce

         14  potable water and runoff to the CSO. We have

         15  determined that stormwater management methods

         16  promoted by this legislation are both achievable and

         17  effective, but the private development community

         18  needs the support of multiple City agencies to make

         19  these green design technologies a widespread feature

         20  of our urban landscape.

         21                 For example, at The Edge, although

         22  the developer is constructing a waterfront park for

         23  conveyance to the City, we were thwarted from

         24  implementing rainwater harvesting in cisterns

         25  because the Parks Department was reluctant to accept
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          2  this supplemental approach to irrigation, and

          3  because there was no financial incentive for the

          4  developer to do so.

          5                 Some elements of the new legislation,

          6  such as Intro. 321, would grant DEP expanded

          7  authority to allow downspout disconnects so that

          8  rainwater from rooftops can be directed to rain

          9  gardens, rain barrels and other rainwater reuses

         10  systems.

         11                 The comprehensive planning approach

         12  set forth in Intro. 630 would ensure that all

         13  relevant City agencies, from Parks to Buildings to

         14  City Planning, and many more, adapt their policies

         15  and practices to promote, in a coordinated fashion,

         16  the widespread use of green design methods for

         17  stormwater management.

         18                 We also applaud Intro. 630's call for

         19  the development of new tax incentives, grant

         20  programs, low-interest financing, expedited

         21  permitting, and other incentives to encourage

         22  private property owners to build new development and

         23  retrofit existing development so as to maximize the

         24  on-site retention and reuse of stormwater.

         25                 Perhaps most critically,
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          2  restructuring current water rates to separate the

          3  potable water charges from stormwater disposal

          4  charges would create market-based incentives for

          5  property owners to minimize the off-site runoff of

          6  stormwater into the City's sewers, thereby making

          7  potable water conservation and green design

          8  techniques to capture and reuse stormwater more

          9  financially attractive.

         10                 The present rate structure assigns

         11  absolutely no marginal cost to the discharge of

         12  stormwater into the sewer system, despite the

         13  significant costs of such discharges to the City's

         14  water quality due to combined sewer overflows.

         15                 We also support Intro. 630's creation

         16  of a citizens' advisory committee to assist in the

         17  development of the plan. Input from the real estate

         18  community would be extremely valuable in developing

         19  a plan that not only sounds good on paper, but will

         20  be implementable in the context of New York City's

         21  private development market.

         22                 Finally, in addition to creating a

         23  range of other environmental and social benefits

         24  than successful stormwater management, the broader

         25  use of green design techniques will promote the
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          2  growth of local markets associated with their

          3  design, construction and maintenance, as well as

          4  create new "green collar" employment opportunities

          5  for New York construction trades.

          6                 In sum, E2 strongly supports the

          7  pending legislation and stands ready to work with

          8  the Council and the Bloomberg Administration towards

          9  the development and implementation of an

         10  economically sound and environmentally beneficial

         11  "Sustainable Stormwater Management Plan." Thank you

         12  for the opportunity to make these comments on behalf

         13  of Environmental Entrepreneurs, E2.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Gresty. I'm so impressed by your testimony and what

         16  you and -- I'll save my comments until after Jordan

         17  has testified, but thank you very much for being

         18  here, it's been great to hear from you.

         19                 MR. GRESTY: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Barowitz,

         21  Jordan.

         22                 MS. SWANSTON: Raise your right hand,

         23  please.

         24                 Do you swear or affirm to tell the

         25  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  today?

          3                 MR. BAROWITZ: I do.

          4                 MS. SWANSTON: Okay.

          5                 (Witness sworn.)

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          7  Jordan.

          8                 MR. BAROWITZ: Okay, good afternoon.

          9  My name is Jordan Barowitz. I'm the Director of

         10  External Affairs for the Durst Organization. I

         11  testify today in support of Intros. 321, 628, 629,

         12  630. I am confident that the importance of this

         13  legislation and sustainable stormwater management

         14  has been thoroughly addressed by others today. The

         15  insight that I can provide to the Committee is that

         16  we have enlisted many of the tenets of Intro. 629

         17  into our buildings.

         18                 As many of you know, the Durst

         19  Organization is one of New York's leading green

         20  builders. The last decade we've built nearly 5

         21  million square feet of environmentally sustainable

         22  buildings, including the nation's first green office

         23  building, and we are currently building the Bank of

         24  America tower, which will be the nation's first lead

         25  platinum office tower.
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          2                 At our residential building, the

          3  Helena, we have a black water recycling system that

          4  reuses water for sanitation and irrigation. At the

          5  Bank of America tower, we will capture all 10

          6  million gallons of water a year that falls on our

          7  blue roof, and recycle it to flush toilets and make

          8  up cooling tower water lost to condensation. Most

          9  importantly, both buildings capture and store water

         10  during rainstorms.

         11                 The point being is that creative and

         12  sustainable stormwater management solutions can and

         13  are being implemented by builders today. These

         14  systems are not prohibitively expensive and often

         15  pay for themselves over the long term.

         16                 Thank you very much for your time and

         17  I'm happy to answer any questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         19  Jordan.

         20                 Everyone knows of Durst's great

         21  commitment to green building, and you know, what

         22  they've been able to do. And I'm heartened by both

         23  of your statements, and just, we just really have an

         24  imperative to have government keep up with you guys,

         25  you know what I mean? There are always a million and
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          2  one reasons, you know, not to do something, but your

          3  firms are showing that these are practical, they're

          4  practicable, they're workable, and we have to take

          5  some of these concepts, crystalize them in

          6  legislation and get everybody to do what you guys

          7  are already doing. So, I'm heartened to have your

          8  unqualified support, for what we're trying to do

          9  here today. And you represent, you know, corporate

         10  good citizens who are doing the right thing,

         11  building a new economy and building a new way of

         12  building buildings. And I thank you for that

         13  support, it will certainly help us in our dealings

         14  with the Administration. It's like it's being done,

         15  why not?

         16                 Mr. Gresty, now, E2 is a group of --

         17  oh, it's a nationwide thing. And are they affiliated

         18  with NRDC and others, or just NRDC? Just tell me

         19  just a little bit about E2.

         20                 MR. GRESTY: E2 is nationwide. It's

         21  primarily active on the east coast, here in New

         22  York, Boston and the largest group is based in

         23  California, founded by a group of entrepreneurs

         24  there, and in collaboration with NRDC we work on

         25  policy issues that we believe the business community
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          2  can stand behind and that make sense to encourage

          3  government to adopt.

          4                 So, as I've said, we've testified

          5  before Congress, we've testified before State

          6  Legislatures, and we've been active in City politics

          7  as well on the west coast and the east coast.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And these are

          9  private industries which are part of E2.

         10                 MR. GRESTY: Yes, we're part of E2 as

         11  individuals. We don't represent our organizations

         12  per say, that's the structure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

         14                 MR. GRESTY: A membership

         15  contribution, which funds the activities of NRDC and

         16  E2's activities as well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And does E2 have

         18  like a headquarters?

         19                 MR. GRESTY: There's essentially a

         20  secretary with regional chairpeople who bring the

         21  group together in different regions, the three main

         22  regions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. I'm just

         24  saying, I'm for the last couple of years been making

         25  allocations to, budget allocations to the New York
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          2  Industrial Retention Network and New York Apollo and

          3  Urban Agenda. It's got the business community, got

          4  the labor community. We've been trying to catalyze

          5  more of a green economy here to get that going, but

          6  you guys are way ahead of us.

          7                 We've been trying to do here on

          8  government to catalyze what you guys have been very

          9  successful in doing. But I certainly want to come to

         10  know more about E2 and all the good work that you're

         11  doing. So, thank you for, not only your testimony,

         12  but for introducing me to E2.

         13                 And Jordan, I just want to thank you

         14  for being here on behalf of the Durst Organization,

         15  and all the good work you guys are doing. And it's

         16  good to see you. You're a good guy with a good

         17  organization.

         18                 MR. BAROWITZ: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, it's nice

         20  when good things happen to good people.

         21                 MR. BAROWITZ: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, thank you

         23  both. We really appreciate you being here today.

         24                 You've got the next panel? Okay, we

         25  will have a panel, Sergeant, of four speakers, if
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          2  you can make the accommodations.

          3                 We have Craig Michaels from

          4  RiverKeeper; Larry Levine, I guess from NRDC, right?

          5  Okay. And Rob Crauderueff and James Wells. I guess

          6  they're both testifying; is that right? Okay. Looks

          7  like it's going to be for more than four. I thought

          8  this was a slip for one. You have two on the slip

          9  here. You have Rob and James, who is the third? Oh,

         10  you know what, that would be too much. Why don't you

         11  guys be the next panel, okay? Yes, you be the next

         12  panel. And, so, we'll have a panel of three and a

         13  panel of three.

         14                 Now, this is saving paper here.

         15  Usually people sign up, you know, one at a time and

         16  like they use a whole slip. They've got three people

         17  on one slip, which is unprecedented in this

         18  Committee. You know, they get the environmental

         19  award. They've got three people on one slip here.

         20                 Yes, and the third would be Teresa

         21  Crimmens, Bronx River Alliance. Part of the SWIM

         22  Coalition.

         23                 So, Craig Michaels, Larry Levine and

         24  Teresa Crimmens. And sustainable South Bronx will be

         25  the next panel.
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          2                 You know what you can do is swear in

          3  the panel all at once.

          4                 MS. SWANSTON: All right.

          5                 I'm going to ask you to all three

          6  raise your right hands. I want you to state your

          7  names.

          8                 MR. LEVINE: Lawrence Levine.

          9                 MR. MICHAELS: Craig Michaels.

         10                 MS. CRIMMENS: Teresa Crimmens.

         11                 MS. SWANSTON: Do you swear or affirm

         12  to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

         13  the truth today?

         14                 MS. CRIMMENS: I do.

         15                 MR. LEVINE: Yes.

         16                 MR. MICHAELS: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         18  very much for being here today. We certainly

         19  appreciated having you out on the steps of City Hall

         20  today, all the great work you've done on stormwater

         21  and other issues, and your support for what we're

         22  trying to do here with these intros.

         23                 Well, why don't we do ladies first.

         24  Is that okay? Ladies first, okay. Teresa.

         25                 MS. CRIMMENS: Thank you.

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 So my name is Teresa Crimmens. I am

          3  the Environmental Coordinator with the Bronx River

          4  Alliance, and also a member of the SWIM Coalition.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, but just

          6  hang on one second.

          7                 MS. CRIMMENS: Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sorry about

          9  that.

         10                 MS. CRIMMENS: That's okay. Are you

         11  ready?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Do I have

         13  your statement? Do you have a written statement?

         14                 MS. CRIMMENS: Oh, I do indeed.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. If you

         16  could give that to the Sergeant and he will

         17  distribute that.

         18                 MS. CRIMMENS: Surely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks very

         20  much. You can commence your testimony.

         21                 MS. CRIMMENS: Okay. Capturing

         22  stormwater on land is a crucial step toward meeting

         23  the City's long-term sustainability goal, as you've

         24  mentioned, of opening waterways to primary

         25  recreation, also reducing the urban heat island
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          2  effect and creating vibrant, healthy and green

          3  neighborhoods. I want to thank you for giving

          4  attention to this important issue.

          5                 Established in November 2001 as a

          6  non-profit corporation, the Bronx River Alliance

          7  acts as a coordinated voice for the river, and works

          8  collaboratively with public and private partners to

          9  protect, improve and restore the Bronx River

         10  Corridor and Greenway. We are deeply concerned about

         11  the impact of combined sewer overflows and polluted

         12  stormwater on the river's health and its potential

         13  as a recreational resource.

         14                 The Alliance is a founding member of

         15  stormwater infrastructure matters or the SWIM

         16  Coalition. It's a growing group of more than 50

         17  organizations from around the City which is

         18  dedicated to ensuring swimmable waters around New

         19  York City through sustainable stormwater management

         20  practices in our neighborhoods.

         21                 More than 1,000 people join me in

         22  paddling the Bronx River in canoes and kayaks this

         23  year. I manage a volunteer water quality program in

         24  which young people and adults come into direct

         25  contact with the water on a weekly basis all year
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          2  round, not just in the summer when beach closure

          3  notices are given.

          4                 Every summer I see children and

          5  adults swimming in the river's estuary within yards

          6  of combined sewer outfalls. This contact with the

          7  water is not unique to the Bronx River. Water-based

          8  recreation is rapidly growing in popularity

          9  throughout the City. CSOs discharge 27 billion

         10  gallons of untreated sewage and stormwater into the

         11  same waters that serve as a recreational haven for

         12  so many New Yorkers.

         13                 In order to reduce the effects of

         14  CSOs on the estuary, New York City must focus on

         15  capturing, infiltrating or otherwise retaining

         16  stormwater before it enters the combined system.

         17                 We believe that this approach is

         18  environmentally and fiscally responsible because it

         19  uses stormwater currently viewed as a waste as a

         20  resource.

         21                 The Alliance and SWIM support this

         22  package of bills, specifically Intro. 628, 629 and

         23  630, that seek to implement the PlaNYC 2030 Water

         24  Quality Initiative, therefore, ensuring that the

         25  City follows through with the intent of PlaNYC so
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          2  that its goals may indeed be achieved by 2030.

          3                 Through creation of a Citywide

          4  sustainable stormwater management plan, Intro. 630,

          5  which we talked about, aims to reduce CSO pollution

          6  by bringing the technologies of low-impact

          7  development into neighborhoods and sewer sheds.

          8                 As many times before, I heard it

          9  mentioned today that New York City is not like any

         10  other City and therefore we need to have a planning

         11  process. And so I guess I would say to that, if no

         12  City is like New York City, we're not going to find

         13  out what it's like until we try some of these

         14  practices, and I just want to say we should try

         15  them.

         16                 Also, if we've planned for 40 percent

         17  of the drainage area in Jamaica Bay, it seems like

         18  we have a lot to go on and that it might not be so

         19  cumbersome to do said planning.

         20                 Some of PlaNYC's goals can be acted

         21  on now. Intro. 629 aims to reduce stormwater inputs

         22  to the combined sewer system from City funded

         23  capital projects.

         24                 In October, it was announced that New

         25  York City will plant 1 million trees over the next
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          2  ten years, and Intro. 628 will help the street tree

          3  portion of the million trees program be designed and

          4  installed for maximum capture.

          5                 I just want to echo what you said

          6  earlier, is that to avoid potential problems of

          7  over-saturation of street tree pits, I would suggest

          8  that Parks determine the maximum level for

          9  particular pits or types of pits instead of fallen

         10  beholden to specific elements, like taking from the

         11  street.

         12                 The maximum for some might just be

         13  sidewalk, maximum for others might be the street as

         14  well.

         15                 This will not only reduce flows into

         16  the combined system, but will also help trees to

         17  survive longer by providing them with more water.

         18                 I hope that this Committee will join

         19  me in supporting these bills. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         21  much. I appreciate your testimony. I appreciate your

         22  being with us earlier today.

         23                 Craig.

         24                 MR. MICHAELS: Okay. Chairman,

         25  Councilman Gennaro, thanks for having us here today.
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          2  My name is Craig Michaels. I'm an Investigator at

          3  Riverkeeper, which is a non-profit environmental

          4  organization that works on protecting the Hudson

          5  River and the New York City drinking water supply.

          6                 We've been prosecuting polluters for

          7  over 40 years, and we have been involved in the CSO

          8  litigation for about 20 years. We're also a proud

          9  member of the SWIM Coalition, and we're also a

         10  founding member of the WaterKeeper Alliance, which

         11  is an international organization that coordinates

         12  the efforts of water keepers across the country and

         13  around the globe.

         14                 The legislation at issue here today

         15  represents a major step forward. To echo what Teresa

         16  just said, it's legislation that recognizes that

         17  stormwater, the stormwater that overloads our

         18  combined sewer system should be used and viewed as a

         19  resource and not a waste, as has been the view

         20  historically.

         21                 The DEP in the past has focused much

         22  of its efforts primarily on end-of-pipe controls,

         23  while cost effective source controls have generally

         24  been ignored.

         25                 Indeed there is a massive imbalance
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          2  in terms of spending, with billions of dollars spent

          3  on end-of-pipe solutions and virtually no real

          4  budget for source controlled technologies.

          5                 And the overarching problem with the

          6  end-of-pipe approach, and I'm probably preaching to

          7  the choir here, but as we know, floods happen at the

          8  source where the rain hits the streets. So, if

          9  you're talking about flooding, spending billions of

         10  dollars on end-of-pipe improvements is basically

         11  nothing more than a band-aid solution, and it's

         12  certainly not going to help residents in areas that

         13  are prone to flooding.

         14                 And while it may be cost prohibitive

         15  to expand sewer lines, it certainly is likely

         16  cheaper and more effective to implement source

         17  control technologies, such as green streets, green

         18  roofs, and a number of items that I'm sure we'll

         19  hear more discussions on in a moment.

         20                 Fortunately source control

         21  technologies, I think as we heard today from the

         22  Mayor's Office, as well as from DEP and certainly

         23  the City Council, source control technologies are

         24  beginning to get the attention they deserve, and I

         25  won't go into them too much because I think they've
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          2  already been covered or will be covered.

          3                 And keeping with this rising tide of

          4  source control implementation, the legislation

          5  before the Committee today I think takes a broad

          6  step forward, and it represents a major achievement

          7  in ongoing efforts to clean up the harbor.

          8                 Now, water quality has dramatically

          9  improved, in and around the harbor, since the Clean

         10  Water Act was passed. But New York City, as Teresa

         11  said, still flushes 27 billion gallons of raw sewage

         12  into the harbor and its surrounding waterways every

         13  year.

         14                 So, there is clearly still work to be

         15  done, but this legislation, if enacted, will go a

         16  long way towards making New York a greener, more

         17  livable City, and it provides the necessary mandate,

         18  and necessary mandate for the responsible cost

         19  effective and environmentally sound management of

         20  stormwater.

         21                 These bills will save the City money

         22  in the longrun, create good jobs, as best management

         23  practices are implemented throughout the five

         24  boroughs, and as I stated earlier, they will help to

         25  address the ever-growing flooding problem, which I
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          2  know you know about, that's going to continue to

          3  effect New Yorkers for the foreseeable future.

          4                 In fact, a report put out by MTA in

          5  August of 2007, actually, sorry, the report was put

          6  out last month regarding the August 2007 flooding,

          7  it noted that any comprehensive plan to address

          8  future flooding will "...require a change in the

          9  institutional culture to include a range of

         10  professions and stakeholders involved in the

         11  planning and decision process."

         12                 Moreover, the report urged that cost

         13  and benefits be analyzed in "...not only monetary

         14  terms, but also in terms of environmental and

         15  community stability."

         16                 New York Harbor, along with the

         17  waterways that feed into it, has always been the

         18  lifeblood of this City. And if that is to continue,

         19  there is one major goal that needs to be fully

         20  embraced, and that is the goal of fishable and

         21  swimmable waters in and around New York City.

         22                 That is the goal of the Clean Water

         23  Act and it can and should be -- that goal should

         24  continue to drive public policy forward.

         25                 Now, as has been noted, the ideals
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          2  espoused in PlaNYC are big steps forward, and

          3  RiverKeeper has consistently applauded the Mayor's

          4  Office with their work, as well as the other

          5  agencies that are working to implement on-the-ground

          6  solutions. But in order to fully realize these

          7  policy goals, there have to be laws and regulations

          8  that can be implemented and be enforced. And this is

          9  why RiverKeeper supports the bills introduced here

         10  today.

         11                 And I just want to be clear to echo,

         12  just in closing to echo what Teresa said. In terms

         13  of when you think about fishable and swimmable

         14  waters, it might seem like a nebulous idea, and it's

         15  a lofty goal that was proposed decades ago, but

         16  there are people fishing in and around Manhattan

         17  right now.

         18                 As Teresa said, there are people

         19  doing contact recreational, having contact

         20  recreational uses of the water all year round. There

         21  are thousands of children swimming every summer, so

         22  we owe it to them, we owe it to future generations

         23  of New Yorkers to move forward and to move forward

         24  quickly and effectively.

         25                 Lots of times we see agencies
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          2  involved that are in charge of protecting our

          3  environment, they say there needs to be future

          4  studies, and that's nice but at some point we need

          5  to be on the ground implementing solutions, and I

          6  think these bills go a long way towards mandating

          7  that, and we fully support them and we continue to

          8  look forward to working with the City Council and

          9  the Mayor's Office and all the agencies to make

         10  fishable and swimmable waters a reality in New York.

         11  Thanks.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         13  you, Craig.

         14                 Mr. Levine.

         15                 MR. LEVINE: Thank you. And thank you

         16  for the opportunity to speak here today.

         17                 On behalf of NRDC and our New York

         18  City members, over 10,000 I believe in New York City

         19  alone, my name is Larry Levine, I'm an attorney in

         20  our New York office, and as noted before, NRDC is

         21  also a member of the SWIM Coalition.

         22                 We appreciate this Committee's

         23  continuing interest in the City's CSO problem. As

         24  you know, in the last several years, the Committee

         25  has held several hearings on the topic of CSOs. In
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          2  September of 2004, a hearing on a State enforcement

          3  order against DEP that required the development of

          4  long-term control plan for CSOs; again in October

          5  2006, on the progress DEP had made to that point in

          6  the long-term control plan process, which by the way

          7  is not scheduled to be complete until 2017; and most

          8  recently, in February of this year, a hearing on the

          9  water quality goals of Mayor Bloomberg's PlaNYC.

         10                 NRDC also has had a longstanding

         11  involvement in issues of combined sewer overflow in

         12  New York City. We've been involved as a party of

         13  legal proceedings before the State Department of

         14  Environmental Conservation, since the early '90s

         15  we've participated in DEP advisory committees on the

         16  long-term control plan process. Since late 2006,

         17  we've engaged the Mayor's Office directly in the

         18  development of PlaNYC and the water quality goals

         19  that are contained therein, and as you know, we've

         20  also worked with your Committee and with the

         21  Council, and my colleague, Brad Soule, in fact

         22  served as the co-chair of the Jamaica Bay Watershed

         23  Protection Plan Advisory Committee, which has been

         24  referenced many times in today's testimony.

         25                 I'll come back to this, but we
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          2  actually believe that the experience with that

          3  advisory committee and with that Jamaica Bay

          4  planning process does in fact serve as an excellent

          5  model for what's proposed here, in terms of the

          6  comprehensive planning process in Intro. 630.

          7  Although, I would note that it's I think the fear or

          8  the concern of the Administration that Intro. 630

          9  would call for completion within the next year of a

         10  series of Jamaica Bay plans, one for every watershed

         11  in the City, I think that's an illusory concern.

         12                 I think the bill, as written now,

         13  requires consideration of geographic distinctions

         14  within the City as to what BMPs are appropriate and

         15  where, under what conditions, but I don't believe

         16  that it was intended to go so far as to require

         17  something as detailed for each individual watershed

         18  as was the Jamaica Bay plan. And, of course, the

         19  Jamaica Bay plan also covered issues much, much

         20  broader than just CSOs, which is one of the reasons

         21  it took a couple of years to complete it.

         22                 This Committee is all too familiar

         23  with the significance of the CSO problem. In short,

         24  due to our outdated and overburdened sewer system,

         25  during rainfall events of as little as one-tenth of
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          2  an inch, New York City annually dumps some 27

          3  billion gallons of raw sewage and polluted

          4  stormwater, spewing from approximately 460 CSO

          5  outfalls into virtually every water body surrounding

          6  New York City - from the Hudson, the East River, the

          7  Bronx River, to Jamaica and Flushing Bay, to Newtown

          8  Creek, to the Gowanus Canal, and many, many others.

          9                 Pathogens and other pollutants

         10  released from CSOs cause beach closures, strict

         11  shellfish uses, damage our waterways, aesthetic

         12  qualities and ability to support human recreation

         13  and aquatic marine life.

         14                 In some areas of the City, assessment

         15  of separate stormwater avoids the CSO problem, but

         16  nonetheless carries significant amounts of metals,

         17  pesticides, and organic and other pollutants washed

         18  off the streets, parking lots, yards and other

         19  surfaces in our City, washed off by rainwater, and

         20  depositing that pollution directly into our waters

         21  without any form of treatment.

         22                 While we agree that that problem is

         23  in comparison to the CSO problem in New York City,

         24  the smaller of the two, simply because of the

         25  majority of the City has combined sewers, we would
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          2  not, I think, agree with the characterization by the

          3  Administration that it's a secondary problem that

          4  can be deferred and dealt with at some point in the

          5  future, and, in fact, the very approach of the

          6  legislation we have here today is equally applicable

          7  to both separately sewered areas and combined sewer

          8  areas because the goal, regardless what the layout

          9  of the pipes is underground, is to keep the water

         10  out of those pipes to begin with. And, so, we

         11  believe it's wholly appropriate to consider separate

         12  stormwater runoff, as well as CSOs in the context of

         13  this legislation.

         14                 Due to the CSO and stormwater

         15  pollution, as well as other pollution, particularly

         16  nitrogen, excessive nitrogen pollution from the

         17  City's 14 sewage treatment plants, 35 years after

         18  the passage of the Clean Water Act, we still remain

         19  a long way from restoring the City's waterways to

         20  fishable and swimmable conditions, as promised in

         21  that law.

         22                 Under the latest plans proposed by

         23  the City DEP, and submitted to the State Department

         24  of Environmental Conservation in June of this year,

         25  DEP proposes an array of end of pipe and other
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          2  engineering fixes that by their estimate which is

          3  under review by DEC, would reduce CSO discharges by

          4  approximately 11 billion gallons a year. But it

          5  would still leave 18 billion gallons a year of

          6  combined untreated sewage and stormwater dumped into

          7  the City's waterways. And those are numbers that the

          8  City has projected ahead to 2045 accounting for

          9  additional population growth between now and that

         10  time.

         11                 So, clearly the end of the pipe

         12  solution alone is not a solution. It's not a

         13  solution by itself. It's part of a solution but it's

         14  not the whole solution.

         15                 I would also note that the City's

         16  plans from earlier this year revealed that nearly

         17  one-third of all public access points to our

         18  waterfront, at least by one measure, one-third of

         19  all public access points Citywide are within three

         20  blocks or less to CSO outfall. I find that quite a

         21  remarkable statistic and I think it really speaks to

         22  the way in which this is an issue that affects all

         23  New Yorkers in all five boroughs, wherever we live

         24  and work.

         25                 Now, I'll turn to the legislation
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          2  specifically, and we're going to I think go off

          3  script, so-to-speak here, and try to address some of

          4  the concerns that were raised by Mr. Strickland and

          5  others in the Administration testimony.

          6                 In regard first to Intro. 630, we're

          7  definitely glad to hear that the Administration is

          8  interested in working with your Committee, and

          9  hopefully I'm sure with the public as well on

         10  adjusting language as may be appropriate to come to

         11  some language that can be agreed upon by everyone

         12  and move forward in unison on it.

         13                 I think some of the concerns they've

         14  raised about the current way the bill is drafted, I

         15  think they're again either illusory or easily fixed.

         16                 I already touched on the issue about

         17  comparison of the Jamaica Bay Plan. Another issue is

         18  that it was described in the City's testimony that

         19  the plan or that the plan called for under the bill

         20  would mandate public and private property to

         21  implement BMPs. And, in fact, I'm sure that was

         22  probably misspoken or not intended in that way in

         23  the testimony, but just to make clear, that bill

         24  does not mandate anyone do anything in the ground.

         25  What it mandates is a planning process, and what it
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          2  mandates, with regard to public and private

          3  property, is the consideration of how to apply BMPs

          4  on both public property and on private property, and

          5  as well as on currently developed property and

          6  property to be developed or redeveloped.

          7                 The public notification aspect of the

          8  bill, I think probably some of the witnesses later

          9  will address this in more detail, but as was noted,

         10  it does relate to certain requirements of the City's

         11  permits. Under the City's SPDES permits and pursuant

         12  to federal law, the City is required to notify the

         13  public of the occurrence and location of combined

         14  sewer overflow events.

         15                 That doesn't mean put out a map that

         16  says where the pipes are and give us a grand total

         17  of how much is dumped per year, it means let people

         18  know when it's not safe to be in or on or near the

         19  water, because there is sewage coming out of it. And

         20  while from a legal perspective it's an issue that on

         21  paper is addressed is covered by the City's permits,

         22  it's one that has been on paper only for a number of

         23  years, and in the absence of proactive action by

         24  either the State or the City to make that a reality,

         25  we believe it's fully appropriate for the Council to
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          2  step in, include that in this legislation and call

          3  for the City to develop a plan for how to make that

          4  a reality, and to continue Council oversight in

          5  that.

          6                 As for Intro. 629 -- I'm sorry, 628

          7  on street trees, again, I think this point has been

          8  made by others, but I will real briefly repeat it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I have to ask

         10  you to summarize, you know.

         11                 MR. LEVINE: Sure. The remaining bill

         12  is, essentially I think the issues are, it seems

         13  that they're over-reading I think in fact what the

         14  bills require. Both 628 and 629, as well as 321,

         15  give, defer to the expertise of the agencies, of DEP

         16  in particular, of Parks with the street trees, in

         17  terms of what specific requirement specifications

         18  would be required in order to implement the

         19  substantive standard set forth in those bills, and

         20  for those reasons we believe it's not at all

         21  premature to move forward with things that we know

         22  how to do that are essentially low hanging fruit,

         23  and don't need to wait for the completion of a

         24  master Citywide plan.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I'm

          3  very appreciative of this panel and all the insights

          4  that you provided and all of your support for what

          5  we're trying to do here. You guys are part of the

          6  process at the outset and you're going to stay part

          7  of the process, and we certainly appreciate

          8  everything that you bring to the table, and I thank

          9  you. Larry, you've even got some proposed amendments

         10  and language which we will thoughtfully consider.

         11                 So, thank you all very much for being

         12  here, for all your great advocacy, and we look

         13  forward to working with you. We appreciate it.

         14                 MR. LEVINE: Thank you. So do we.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, as I

         16  promised, Sustainable South Bronx, which has three

         17  people, Mr. Crauderueff, Mr. Wells and I can't read

         18  the last name, Laboi, perhaps. Because you're three

         19  people, we have different organizations that want to

         20  put forward their perspectives, so I'm going to be a

         21  little strict on time.

         22                 MR. CRAUDERUEFF: We promise to be

         23  brief.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Okay. And

         25  you know, some of what's already been said about
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          2  stormwater is bad, we all know that, you know, and

          3  so we want to focus on the legislation. And so

          4  counsel will swear you in and then we will commence.

          5                 MS. SWANSTON: Gentlemen, please raise

          6  your right hands.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

          8  speak right into the microphone.

          9                 MS. SWANSTON: Please state your

         10  names.

         11                 MR. CRAUDERUEFF: Rob Crauderueff.

         12                 MR. LABOI: Amilcar Laboi.

         13                 MR. WELLS: James Wells.

         14                 MS. SWANSTON: Do you swear or affirm

         15  to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

         16  the truth today?

         17                 MR. CRAUDERUEFF: I do.

         18                 MR. LABOI: I do.

         19                 MR. WELLS: I do.

         20                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         22  you.

         23                 So, why don't we start with Rob. Just

         24  state your name for the record again and then

         25  proceed with your statement.
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          2                 MR. CRAUDERUEFF: My name is Rob

          3  Crauderueff. And I am Program Coordinator at

          4  Sustainable South Bronx. I speak on behalf of

          5  Sustainable South Bronx, and we are also a member of

          6  the Coalition SWIM. I want to thank you, Council

          7  Member Gennaro, for your leadership in introducing

          8  this legislation, and for providing us the

          9  opportunity to share our comments.

         10                 And we are eager to lend our support

         11  to the implementation of the City's stormwater

         12  management plan in a meaningful way. And so we are

         13  very supportive of Intro. 628, 629, 630 and 321. And

         14  I will kind of cut to the chase in terms of the fact

         15  that certainly we are supportive of what our

         16  partners have been speaking about throughout, but

         17  there are two points that I would like to emphasize

         18  this afternoon. The first is that we need to capture

         19  the knowledge of citizens throughout New York City,

         20  and land use has been changing significantly in New

         21  York. There is much more waterfront access. For

         22  example, there is a greenway that is planned to go

         23  through Hunts Point, and two waterfront parks that

         24  just opened up and those waterfronts are being used,

         25  and we're kind of a victim of our own success in the
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          2  fact that they're being used so much that as has

          3  been mentioned that it's just impossible to keep

          4  people away from the water when there is waterfront

          5  access, and we need to plan for the protection of

          6  everybody and to make the City as strong as possible

          7  in making the waterways safe for recreational use in

          8  terms of swimming and fishing.

          9                 And secondly is the Economic

         10  Development component. At Sustainable South Bronx we

         11  run a job training program called BEST, that you'll

         12  hear about from my colleagues, which stands for the

         13  Bronx Ecological Stewardship Training Program. Over

         14  the last five years, over 60 graduates have received

         15  formal training in ecological restoration and

         16  currently maintain trees, install and maintain green

         17  roofs, remediate brownfields and do much more to

         18  help clean and maintain green throughout the City,

         19  and we feel that this legislation, particularly 630,

         20  would be able to capture the knowledge of citizens

         21  that have been working for a very long time to

         22  figure out how to make economic development be

         23  complimentary with green initiatives of the City.

         24  And over the last five years, 60 graduates, over 80

         25  percent are employed or in college, over 75 percent
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          2  of those employed are working in the field of

          3  ecological restoration.

          4                 In short, there's an emerging

          5  workforce of green collar workers eager to be

          6  trained and to apply their knowledge to green the

          7  City. And it's a very replicable program.

          8                 Finally, we at Sustainable South

          9  Bronx run a green roof installation program, and so

         10  we have a lot of knowledge in-house, as so many

         11  other organizations here and throughout the City

         12  have, to know how to implement these strategies and

         13  to have visions for how to streamline it throughout

         14  the City and to have many more occur for the next 20

         15  years to come. And, so, we look forward to being

         16  able to partner with the City, and again, we both

         17  appreciate the efforts of the Administration, of

         18  PlaNYC, and, of course, yourself, Councilman

         19  Gennaro. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

         21                 So, these witnesses are going to talk

         22  about the program?

         23                 MR. CRAUDERUEFF: Yes. They will

         24  briefly share some of the experiences that they've

         25  had.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: While there is,

          3  this is, you know, a legislative hearing on these

          4  specific bills, and this is a little afield from

          5  that. But I'll give you a little bit of lattitude.

          6                 MR. CRAUDERUEFF: And I think the

          7  reason that we're seeking what may remain as

          8  latitude, is that this demonstrates the kind of

          9  knowledge that communities have.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 MR. CRAUDERUEFF: And why, especially

         12  when looking at, as part of Introduction 630 there

         13  is the Citizens Advisory Committee that we feel is a

         14  tremendous asset.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, why don't

         16  we listen to them, but a limited time, because it is

         17  a little far afield, but I'm happy and gratified

         18  that there is such an effort like this going on, and

         19  I think the Committee could indulge the witnesses a

         20  little bit here. So, please commence.

         21                 State your name for the record and

         22  then give your testimony.

         23                 MR. LABOI: My name is Amilcar Laboi,

         24  and I want to thank the Council for giving the

         25  opportunity to me this morning, and I am one of the
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          2  greenway stewards of Sustainable South Bronx, and I

          3  graduated from the BEST program, which stands for

          4  Bronx Ecological Stewardship training. I am also a

          5  green roof installer. I was trained by Sustainable

          6  South Bronx and I learned the quality of trees and

          7  plants, I learned how to identify trees and prune

          8  trees. My job duties are to care for the tree and

          9  reach out to my community.

         10                 Right now we have the community

         11  getting more involved now that they see we are doing

         12  something positive for the community.

         13                 For example, we have these two huge

         14  large tanks for when it doesn't rain, we water the

         15  trees ourself. And the tanks hold 40 to 50 gallons

         16  of water each, and we have two which is like 80 to

         17  100 gallons of water.

         18                 I just want to thank everyone.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you very much for being here today. And we're

         21  grateful that there is such a program and you're

         22  people are engaged in the maintenance of our

         23  environment, as their livelihood. That's a good

         24  thing, and thank you for being here.

         25                 Mr. Wells.
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          2                 MR. WELLS: Is this on?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, you're on.

          4                 MR. WELLS: Okay. How is everybody

          5  doing? My name is James Wells, and as the brother

          6  said, I'm a Greenway Steward, and I also graduated

          7  from the BEST training program. What I've been

          8  hearing today is that a lot of people have been

          9  talking about how like the trees can retain water,

         10  the expansion of the tree pit, with also a system of

         11  attaining water. One of the things I've been

         12  confronted with, with having this job, is that there

         13  has been people to plant trees but there hasn't been

         14  enough people to maintain them. And we've been

         15  confronted with abnormal growths of trees, trees

         16  growing irregular, a lot of trees are dying. So,

         17  like, we're going to need more people to maintain

         18  trees.

         19                 I also install green roofs too, and

         20  we could talk about how like green roofs improve air

         21  quality and also how they could retain water and

         22  this could also help toward the retention and also

         23  help our water quality. But me being a black male,

         24  there's 65 percent black males who are unemployed,

         25  and I think that if these bills were passed, this
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          2  would definitely not only help the stormwater

          3  management, but it would reduce the unemployment

          4  rate that is among blacks and Latinos here in New

          5  York City.

          6                 It actually has saved me. It has

          7  educated and trained me in ecological restoration

          8  and protection, which has raised my awareness in how

          9  to take care of nature and it has given me an

         10  appreciation of nature, and also has saved me from

         11  poverty, and may have saved me from going towards a

         12  means that may have -- from criminal activity, I

         13  think this right here will save a lot of black males

         14  and Hispanic males from going towards crime in order

         15  survive. So, I think that if these bills were

         16  passed, it would not only be good for storm

         17  management, but it will also reduce unemployment,

         18  but it will also reduce crime and also the

         19  recidivism rate, and I'm definitely for it. And I

         20  thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I

         22  want to thank this panel in a special way for giving

         23  a perspective to the bills that we're doing here.

         24  It's certainly a perspective that none of the other

         25  witnesses have brought forward and I want to commend
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          2  you for what you're doing to commit oneself to the

          3  maintenance of the environment. And then to preach

          4  that message is a wonderful thing.

          5                 So, thank you all for being here

          6  today. We appreciate your support of the bills, and

          7  good luck with taking care of the Bronx.

          8                 Okay, Kate Zidar of the SWIM

          9  Coalition. Stephen Oliveira. Oh, Oliveira. It's

         10  better with my glasses on. And David Byer. Is that

         11  right? B-y-e-r, of Clean Ocean Action. Mr. Oliveira

         12  is with Youth Ministries for Peace and Justice.

         13                 Kate indicated she was with the SWIM

         14  Coalition. But aren't you Youth Ministeries Peace

         15  and Justice?

         16                 MS. ZIDAR: I'm SWIM today, and

         17  Stephen is going to be Youth Ministries.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And, so,

         19  if Counsel will swear in the panel.

         20                 MS. SWANSTON: Rise your right hands.

         21                 Please state your names.

         22                 MS. ZIDAR: Kate Zidar.

         23                 MR. OLIVEIRA: Stephen Oliveira, Youth

         24  Ministries for Peace and Justice.

         25                 MR. BYER: Dave Byer.
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          2                 MS. SWANSTON: Do you swear or affirm

          3  to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

          4  the truth today?

          5                 MS. ZIDAR: I affirm.

          6                 MR. OLIVEIRA: Yes.

          7                 MR. BYER: Yes.

          8                 MS. SWANSTON: Okay.

          9                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         11  very much for being here and being with us earlier

         12  today. And I'll call upon Kate to go first.

         13                 MS. ZIDAR: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have

         15  written testimony, Kate?

         16                 MS. ZIDAR: I do. It's with the

         17  Sergeant.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, it's coming

         19  around. Okay.

         20                 MS. ZIDAR: Essentially, I would just

         21  like to say that, you know, we're at the stage in

         22  the hearing, I have the benefit of reacting to

         23  previous testimony and will basically let you read

         24  my writing at your leisure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's fine.
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          2                 MS. ZIDAR: You've seen it all before.

          3                 Essentially the SWIM Coalition, that

          4  you've heard about so much --

          5                 SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Please state your

          6  name.

          7                 MS. ZIDAR: Kate Zidar. SWIM

          8  Coalition.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: She did. Kate

         10  Zidar. She did. Okay.

         11                 MS. ZIDAR: All right.

         12                 Our platform at SWIM falls right in

         13  line with these introductions and we support them.

         14  The points in particular on our platform, effective

         15  public notification, a transparent planning process,

         16  meaning public participation, government reform in

         17  terms of massaging the existing land use and

         18  planning procedures to insert BMPs wherever we

         19  possibly can, in addition to creating new ones.

         20  Multi-agency cooperation, a collaborative approach.

         21                 You, in particular, your Committee,

         22  you're familiar with what we're about. And I

         23  suppose, just to go, you know, immediately off

         24  script, I've heard a lot today and I'd like to

         25  react, hopefully in a calm and collected manner.
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          2                 The thing about the SWIM Coalition is

          3  that we will be here in the next Administration. We

          4  are not here for a political time line, we're here

          5  based on missions from our organizations, based out

          6  of scientific interest, based out of interest in our

          7  own communities, and so we approach things very

          8  differently than, you know, than the City just in

          9  general.

         10                 And, so, our goal, first of all, our

         11  goal that you heard about is ambitious, in relation

         12  to the other goals mandated in the long-term control

         13  plan and set by PlaNYC. Our goal, although locally

         14  it might seem ambitious, it's really 30 years old,

         15  same old Clean Water Act that we've been hearing

         16  about forever. And, so, I guess I just kind of want

         17  to maybe introduce folks here to the way we approach

         18  things.

         19                 What I heard today in regards to, you

         20  know, New York City not being like any other place,

         21  culturally, historically that might be true. But if

         22  you're a raindrop and you fall on a building, you

         23  don't care if you're in New York City or you're in

         24  Pittsburgh or you're in Chicago or if you're in, you

         25  know, any other place in the world. There are
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          2  certain things that can be learned from case studies

          3  in other places. There are also things that can be

          4  learned from things that are happening here today

          5  without incentives, without the benefit of Citywide

          6  funding, without Citywide support and being, you

          7  know, on a Citywide scale. And those things, I think

          8  in particular, the local BMPs that have been

          9  implemented by SWIM Coalition members and by other

         10  organizations, by gardeners, by people in their back

         11  yards that we don't know about yet, that's a really

         12  valuable storehouse of information, and informing a

         13  Coalition, that's what we're interested in shaking

         14  from the trees.

         15                 In terms of case studies, let try and

         16  find -- I've just been kind of scribbling furiously,

         17  and I'll try and be brief. In terms of case studies,

         18  what we can learn, from Philadelphia, it was

         19  mentioned, vacant land is being used for stormwater

         20  management, our population loss is not a

         21  characteristic of New York City. It doesn't mean we

         22  don't have vacant land. And it doesn't mean that our

         23  open spaces can't be shaped the way that the vacant

         24  land -- quite frankly, many vacant spaces in

         25  Philadelphia are being managed in terms of
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          2  stormwater management better than our open spaces

          3  here in New York City that fall under our natural

          4  resource management agency. So, I find that

          5  striking. Also the Philadelphia green projects, they

          6  give us a valuable, very, very valuable case of

          7  partnership between a horticultural society,

          8  botanical garden, if you will. We have a botanic

          9  garden in every borough, except for Manhattan. But

         10  we do have a horticultural society. The partnership

         11  between the water division, the technical water

         12  keepers and the privately funded basically botanic

         13  world.

         14                 Rust belt (phonetic) cities with

         15  ambitious BMP projects have happened with bankrupt

         16  budgets. I think that that's a valuable lesson to

         17  learn. How can Pittsburgh be doing amazing water

         18  quality work in the financial conditions that it's

         19  been in for the last 30 years. I think we can learn

         20  something about cost effectiveness there.

         21                 And, yes, we do have diverse soil

         22  types. There are specific conditions on the ground,

         23  but with a little bit of education. This is

         24  gardening, you know? I mean, a lot of people are

         25  interested, and I know in my neighborhood in
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          2  greenpoint, there are Polish women who are growing

          3  cucumbers in their back yards, making pickels and

          4  selling them in delis.

          5                 And, so, you know, this kind of

          6  information about soil quality, about water quality,

          7  this is something that people can grasp. This is

          8  also something that people can benefit from. People

          9  are looking to use natural resources in New York

         10  City. Just because you move to a City it doesn't

         11  mean that you become completely disconnected from

         12  the planet. People are fishing, people are growing

         13  their own food, and coming back to my home

         14  organization, Youth Ministries for Peace and

         15  Justice, a lot of these environmental issues are

         16  social justice issues. These are basic human rights,

         17  to be able to feed one's family and to live in a

         18  city that doesn't make you sick, or to maybe just

         19  swim in water, and have your children swim in water

         20  that doesn't make them sick, and they don't get an

         21  asthma attack in the middle of it.

         22                 So, just the last thing I'd like to

         23  talk about, because it is a pet issue of mine, is

         24  the public notification point. If we are not able to

         25  solve these problems immediately, and at the same
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          2  time we are gentrifying our neighborhoods, our

          3  waterfront neighborhoods, we are putting up tons of

          4  housing right on the waterfront, we're opening up

          5  access, if these two things are happening, if that

          6  is all happening while we are not solving the

          7  problem at a clip, we need public notification. Not

          8  only is it federally required, but we need it.

          9                 And public notification of the

         10  location of an occurrence of a CSO event is not

         11  communicated to me by a green sign facing out on a

         12  bulkhead that reads a SPDES permit and says nothing

         13  of sewage, says nothing of be careful, that says

         14  nothing in Spanish, that says nothing in any other

         15  language but legalees. And to me that has been a

         16  long-standing failure of the City to provide the

         17  basic public health protection that is madated.

         18                 So, I didn't read anything, but you

         19  know SWIM, and I appreciate the opportunity,

         20  especially to respond to some of the things that

         21  have been said today. And thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         23  you, Kate.

         24                 Please state your name for the

         25  record.
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          2                 MR. OLIVEIRA: Hello. Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Stephen Oliveira. I'm the Environmental

          4  Justice Organizer with Youth Ministries for Peace

          5  and Justice, a non-profit organization located in

          6  the Bronx. We're also a member of SWIM.

          7                 I'm here today to urge the passage of

          8  legislation to improve water quality through

          9  sustainable stormwater management.

         10                 I'm going to kind of jump and keep it

         11  short here.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         13                 MR. OLIVEIRA: The general intent of

         14  the proposed legislation is to ensure swimmable

         15  waters around New York City through BMPs.

         16                 While these BMPs will ensure

         17  swimmable waters, there are other outcomes that will

         18  happen as a result of this: Tree pits engineered to

         19  contain more discharged stormwater will result in

         20  healthier trees, which will result in more curbside

         21  appeal for an area, and it will help with the asthma

         22  rates, especially in our community, which is double

         23  that of the national average.

         24                 Now, there are many experts here from

         25  many organizations that are testifying in support of
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          2  the proposed legislation, the stormwater management,

          3  sustainable stormwater management. Unfortunately,

          4  our experts cannot be here today. They're still

          5  completing the fifth grade.

          6                 With that, not too long ago YMPJ did

          7  a canoe trip with PS 196 in the Bronx, and they also

          8  led a workshop along the East River. While the

          9  outings were a great success, the fifth graders

         10  really didn't notice what the Bronx River looked and

         11  smelled like, in comparison to other rivers, in

         12  comparison to the same river up north. The discovery

         13  of CSOs prompted YMPJ to lead a letter writing

         14  campaign with them to Mayor Bloomberg one of those

         15  here. The class asked me to. Our experts.

         16                 The letter is from one particular

         17  student, Ahmed. And he writes:

         18                 "Dear Mayor Bloomberg, my name is

         19  Ahmed, and I come from PS 196. I'm a ten-year-old

         20  boy, Mr. Mayor. This past week me and my fifth grade

         21  class went to a park in the East River. While we

         22  were there, we learned a lot about CSOs. A CSO

         23  stands for Combined Sewer Overflow. That means that

         24  when it rains, you know how human waste works inside

         25  sewers, well on rainy days sewers get overflowed and
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          2  the sewerage treatment plant can't handle it all.

          3  And it happens to happen that they dump the human

          4  waste into rivers, such as the Bronx River, the East

          5  River and many more. But the point is me and my

          6  class demand that you plant trees near our school.

          7  The reason behind this is that we would like you to

          8  do something.

          9                 Mr. Mayor, you're probably wondering

         10  what we want for you to do. What we want is for you

         11  to make many City workers plant more trees and grass

         12  in the New York City area, especially near our

         13  school because we have no trees there. But we do

         14  have a CSO, so that's no good.

         15                 We want more grass because when it

         16  rains, the soil in grass can soak it up and less

         17  water goes into the sewer, so that means less CSOs.

         18                 If you decide to accept this

         19  proposition, our neighborhood is in the Bronx. We

         20  live on Ward Avenue, our school is there too. And

         21  hopefully you will help us by sending City workers

         22  to help plant grass and trees.

         23                 Sincerely, Ahmed."

         24                 The CSO that Ahmed writes about, HP

         25  009, discharges approximately 681 million gallons of
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          2  CSO into the Bronx River yearly. And this is just

          3  one of three within close proximity to his

          4  community. While HP 009 is rated the seventh worst

          5  Citywide, he observes no trees around his school.

          6                 By demanding that City workers plant

          7  more trees, Ahmed understands explicitly that CSOs

          8  will be reduced through sustainable stormwater

          9  management practices, and he understands implicitly

         10  that the environment inequities faced by the

         11  community becomes a little less so.

         12                 So, while these bills are introduced

         13  by the reason of swimmability and recreation, there

         14  is an underscoring of environmental justice that's

         15  at stake here.

         16                 And with this, Youth Ministries for

         17  Peace and Justice urges the passage of legislation

         18  to improve water quality through sustainable

         19  stormwater management, improvement of water quality

         20  through sustainable stormwater management, which

         21  would improve quality of life.

         22                 Thank you for your time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         24  Stephen. We appreciate you being here and for

         25  reading the statement of the little boy, very
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          2  poignant and appropriate. Thank you. Thank you.

          3                 Mr. Byer.

          4                 MR. BYER: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

          6  being here.

          7                 MR. BYER: Yes.

          8                 Yes, my name is Dave Byer, Water

          9  Policy Attorney with Clean Ocean Action, and I'm

         10  joined by Anna Will, our Pollution Prevention

         11  Coordinator in the back. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         12  for the opportunity to testify today.

         13                 Clean Ocean Action is a broadbased

         14  coalition of groups in both New York and New Jersey

         15  dedicated to improving the degraded water quality of

         16  the marine environment of the New Jersey and New

         17  York coast.

         18                 These waters are known as the New

         19  York New Jersey Bight, and it is imperative that

         20  both states continue to pursue strong, strong, water

         21  management measures to continue progress for water

         22  quality in the marine environment.

         23                 We believe these laws posed by the

         24  City are an integral step toward more sustainable

         25  stormwater management. Each year stormwater runoff
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          2  resulting in CSO events discharge non-point source

          3  pollutants, including harmful debris, pathogens,

          4  nutrients, hard metals and other contaminants into

          5  New York's waterways and by extension the shared

          6  waters of New Jersey.

          7                 These pollutants can cause floatable

          8  incidents, nutrient enrichment and a depletion of

          9  oxygen levels in the New York/New Jersey Bight

         10  waters, damaging the ecology and threatening the

         11  human health.

         12                 Stormwater runoff that flows into the

         13  New York Harbor also contributes to a massive dead

         14  zone in the ocean for over 80 days each year,

         15  resulting in a non-attainment area under the Clean

         16  Water Act.

         17                 The diagram I attached for our

         18  comments for you includes an illustration of the

         19  scale of this environmental devastation, the amount

         20  of days, over 80 is in red, and it shows a large

         21  part of the New York Bight and New Jersey Bight that

         22  is a dead zone.

         23                 These proposed laws promote many

         24  sound practices that are crucial to addressing the

         25  problems associated with stormwater.
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          2                 For example, maximizing vegetative

          3  and tree planting capacities for retention,

          4  detention and stormwater infiltration is vital to

          5  reducing non-point source pollution that reaches

          6  waterways through stormwater runoff, and CSO events,

          7  mimicking more natural hydrology and recharging

          8  groundwater supplies.

          9                 It is notable that the City will take

         10  the lead on sustainable stormwater management

         11  practices by requiring such standards on capital

         12  projects.

         13                 Another important measure is the

         14  requirement that sustainable stormwater management

         15  plan include a protocol for notification of the

         16  public of the occurrence of discharges through CSOs.

         17                 This requirement compliments

         18  environmental goals with public safety measures.

         19  These are just some of the examples of sound

         20  measures proposed in the intros.

         21                 In order to protect and restore the

         22  water quality of New York City's water bodies, the

         23  City needs to take strong and active steps towards

         24  implementing sustainable stormwater management

         25  plans. These proposed local laws are an important
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          2  and good step in that direction.

          3                 Clean Ocean Action is glad to see

          4  this progress and encourages the adoption and

          5  implementation of these laws.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          8  you, Mr. Byer. We appreciate your being here and all

          9  the good work of clean ocean action, and you came

         10  from New Jersey to be with us, thank you for that.

         11                 I want to thank this panel for all

         12  the great work that you're doing. Your testimony

         13  certainly bears witness to the need, not only to

         14  act, but to act now, to act decisively and

         15  comprehensively and it's hard to thank you enough

         16  for what you've been able to do for the effort here.

         17  So, I appreciate your being here. Thanks so much.

         18                 And with no one else wishing to be

         19  heard, this hearing is adjourned. Thank you.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 4:10 p.m.)
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